Concordia Parish Police Jury

Collin Edwards
President

Adam Probst
Vice-President

Sandi T. Burley
Secretary /
"Treasurer

URORS;

Dhstrict 1A
Maurice Bachus

Diserict 1B
Joseph Parker, Sr.

Diserice 2
Willie Bill Yearby

Districr 34
Adam Probst

District 3B
Scottie Whittington

District 44
Genesia Allen

Dastrict 48
Gary Neal

District 3A
Collin Edwrards

District 5B
Brad Adarns

Notice Posted: 02{[01?12022 3.{(3’39’9111. 4001 Carter Street, Rm 1
Vidalia, LA 71373
Phone: 318-336-7151 Fax: 318-336-9915
conppj.otg

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA**

February 28, 2022 -6:00 PM

4001 Carter Street, Room 2, Vidalia, LA 71373

A} Open Public Hearing
B) Public Comments on updating ordinances pertaining to Sewage Disposal and Sanitation Codes

C) Close Public Hearing

1

' 2).

3)

4)

5

6

7)

8)
9
10)

Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge and Roll Call of Members

Approve February 14, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes

Consider for Adoption: Ordinance 2022-02 Updates to Sanitation Codes adding in the absence
of formal regulations, the Parish shall use LA Administrative Code, Title 51: Part XTII
Sewage Disposal |

Review request from CPSO for funding assistance for jail floors

‘Projects: Brushy Bayou, Winter Storm, PA 4462, HMGP 4462, ARPA, Broadband

a. Advertising needed: RFQ Engineering — HMGP 4462 (Vidalia Canal/Cocodrie Bayou)
Ordinance Violations

Secretary / Treasurer’s Report

a. PJAL Convention

b. Audit Schedule

Discuss Work Orders /Approve Superintendent’s Materi al & Work Request

Review Work Orders

Correspondence / Public Comments (on agenda items)

Adyourn

Zoom Participation
is Available:

Via Telephone: 212-626-6799
Via Web/App: zoom.us
Meeting ID: 318 336 7151

#¥The Concordia Parish Police Jury affords the oppertunity to any member of the public, present at its mestings, to addressthe Jury prior to finel action on any matter under consideration
before the fill jury, Per Open Meatings Law, “Public Comment Period” will be held under each agenda item once a motion ismade and prior to final vote. In accordance with the American

Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance contact Sandi T. Burley at 318-336-7151 describing the assistance required.

Concordia Parish Police Jury is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employee



PARISH POLICE JURY
REGULAR MEETING
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
6:00 P.M.

The Police Jury of Concordia Parish met this day in regular session convened. There were present
the following members:

President: Collin Edwards
Members: Maurice Bachus, Joseph Parker, Sr., Willie Yearby, Genesia Allen,
Scottie Whittington, Adam Probst, Brad Adams

Absent:

Secretary Treasurer: Sandi T. Burley
Invocation: Mr. Yearby
Pledge of Allegiance: Mr. Adams

A) President Collin Edwards announced the public hearing for public comments on Ordinance 22-
001 - establishing the North Louisiana Railroad Development District open.

B) Pubtic Comments were received. Below is an overview of the questions, answers and discussions
that took place:

Kevin Friloux spoke first reading from his letter to the newspaper and submitted to the Parish office
with his position against the railroad. Stating that differing planning and oversight districts already
exist and the board would be able to set their own salaries and compensation. Mr. Friloux also
stated that he felt the constituents were already being taxed to death and small businesses and
residential homes would be taxed further, referencing the Commissions ability to propose up to 5
mills as ad valorem taxes on homes and businesses that are not homestead exempt.

Mr. Bryant Killen who is leading the task of creating the commission stated the ordinance would

give the railroad district the ability to propose a millage. The matter would still have to be placed on

a ballot and voted by the residents of the parish. Mr, Killen was also asked, “What has been done or

proposed (to build the railroad to Concordia Parish)?” Mr. Killen responded that the plans were stifl 1
in the infancy stages. Madison and Tensas parishes would use the “old bed” where possible. The ‘
raitroad would come through Ferriday and to the industrial park toward the port. The commission %
would be made up of two members from each of the parishes (Madison, East Carroll, Tensas, and

Concordia) and those eight would vote in the 9® member.

Vidalia Mayor Buz Craft was also in attendance. Mr. Craft state that whether the Jurors voted yes
or no, this is the only route to go. The Jurors should be serious about the future of the Parish
envisioning past the next ten years.

Mr. Killen further stated that there is industry looking to relocate due to the location along the
Mississippi River. This industry will help the economy.

Mzr. Corbett asked where the funding would come from to build a rail line between the four parishes
to the river. Mr, Killen described that there were $3 billion in funding available to build the
economy. He further explained that in 2011, the Mississippi reached a record high, In 2012, a
record low. This caused problems for farmers to barge their crops. Every parish has a different
reason to bring the railroad. There are also additiornal furds available that can be tsed as tocal
match to funding available.

Tax Assessor Mr, Jerry Clark spoke on the millages. Using prior year assessments, 5 mills would
bring in approximately $780,000 in annual revenue. Mr. Killen responded that he was not here to
levee a tax. However, in East Carroll Parish, 5 of the top 10 tax payers are in and around their port.



Resident Jeff Britt asked Mr. Killen who is mainly backing this initiative. Stating he had spoken
with DOTD and was present at the monthly meeting of the Port Commissions. Mr. Britt asked
about the estimated costs for the end results of the project. Mr. Killen responded stating that $20
million was being allocated for a railroad rehabilitation project in Lake Providence. Mr. Killen
further stated that he had an estimate but with current inflation, final numbers weren’t calculated.

Mr. Killen stated the plan is to get the board created first. Mr. Craft echoed his actions by stating
that until the board is created, no funds can be requested. Juror Parker asked once the board is
created, how will it be funded? Mr. Killen responded that a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement
(CEA) with Vidalia and Tensas ports would be a financial benefit.

Juror Neal asked who would own the track? Mr. Killed stated the district could own the tracks or if
the ports are willing, they could own the tracks and the commission could lease to operators.

M. Craft state the biggest benefit is indirect as the economic development will lead to spending as
new infrastructure is buiit and mainfained.

Mr. Parker asked Mr. Killen if he had spoken with the Mayors of Clayton and Ferriday as they
would be impacted on the revitalization of the railroad through their respective municipalities.

Mr. Killen stated he has not met with Mayors of any entity but met with East Carroll Police Jury on
the 8" where they adopted their ordinance. He will be at the Tensas Police Jury on the 22*, and
Madison Parish Police Jury on the 28",

Ms. Burley asked Mr. Edwards if she could bring questions and comments received to the Parish
office forward. Ms. Burley stated the top question received was about the millage. The second
question was about imminent domain. Will this be used and how will it affect the residents? Mr.
Kiilen responded that land ownets would be compensated based on a proposed map run like a port.
Mr, Clark stated that original track is gone in Concordia Parish so it could not be used. Mr. Killen
further commented that no board is going to elect to go through someone’s home or business.

Ms. Burley also brought forward concerns that this would lead to building “Buz’s Industrial Park”.
With questions over millages being given up to expand Syrah and the Parish and the municipalities
it supports with sales tax are receiving no direct tax money. However, the Town of Vidalia receives
2.5% sales tax from Syrah, while the Parish receives 20% of its proportionate millage over the next
ten years.

Mr. Craft stated that he hated (o see heartburn over successes. He envisions the Parish and the
Municipalities working together. ‘

Mr, Neal asked if this would be commercial and/or passenger trains, Mr. Killen stated only
commercial use is planned.

Mr. Yearby further commented that Concordia Parish has lost businesses because of no railroad
system. Mr. Parker echoed that it is sad the railroad had to go away in the first place.

C) There being no further public comments, Mr. Edwards closed the Public Hearing.

Page 2 of 5



1)  Ms. Burley conducted the roll call and a quorum was declared present.

2) A motion was made by Mr. Probst seconded by Mr. Yearby to approve the minutes of the
January 24, 2022 meeting as distributed. Motion carried unanimously.

3)  Consider for Adoption, Ordinance 2022-01 — establishing the Northeast Louisiana Railroad
Development District. A motion was made by Mr. Parker to table the vote on the ordinance to
allow Mr. Killen to reach out to others in the Parish (Mayors of Ferriday and Clayton). The motion
was seconded by Mr. Neal and carried unanimously.

4) A motion was made by Mr. Yearby seconded by Mr. Neal to approve the renewal of the
Restoration Tax Abatement Program Application for Weeks Properties Restoration. Motion carried
unanimous with Mr. Probst abstaining.

5) A request from the Concordia Fire District #2 was received to approve the renewal of
appointments for Mr. Virgil Barnes and Mr. Harvey Cowan for another term. A motion was made
by Mr. Neal, seconded by Mr. Yearby and carried unanimously to approve the appointments.

6) Committee Updates and Reports were next discussed.

a)  Ratify Purchase Orders and Bank Statements — The Finance Committee had reviewed the
purchase orders and bank statements and financial updates were distributed to the Jurors prior to the
meeting to review. A motion was made by Mr. Probst seconded by Mr. Adams to ratify the
purchase orders and bank statements-as presented. Motion carried nnanimously.

7y Projects of the Parish were next discussed. Ms. Burley presented an update on current *
projects.

Brushy Bayou - Jordan, Kaiser, and Sessions had been notified to be present for the current meeting

as requested. Confirmation had been received by Mr. Hayden Kaiser that they would be in

attendance. No one from Jordan, Kaiser and Sessions (JKS) was present at the meeting. Mr. Parker

asked for a motion to give Ms. Burley the authority to follow up with DOTD on the status of

responses needed from JKS and if they had been received. If no submissions had been made by JKS

to DOTD, then have Ms. Burley contact our attorney for further action. The motion was seconded

by Ms. Alien and carried unanimously.

a. Resolution 22-007 was presented for review and adoption. The resolution is needed by the

Parish to uphold State and Federal Share Altocations for match funds where applicable for the life-of
the proposed projects. A motion was made by Mr. Yearby seconded by Mr. Bachus to approve the i
resolution as presented. Motion carried unanimousty. (See Addendum for Resolution 22-007.) ‘

b. Ms. Burley asked for the Jurors to determine a date for annual Ethics and Sexual Harassment
Training.
¢. ARPA — A request was received from Monterey Rural Water System (MWRS) requesting a

portion of the allocated funds be used toward obtaining reverse osmosis components needed to run
the water system efficiently. Proper quotes were obtained and submitted to the Parish for review. A

Page 3 of §



motion was made by Mr. Yearby seconded by Mr. Parker to approve the funding allocation.
Motion carried unanimously with Mr, Adams abstaining.

8)  Ordinance Violations of the Parish were next discussed. The following was brought forward:
Whittington — Property at 215 Ron Road and property owned by C. Tucker of Ron Road need
culverts replaced. Cutrent culverts are not adequate and need replacing due to obstruction of proper
drainage. _

Probst — Clean up on Audubon Acres is needed. Addresses will be provided for proper citation.
Allen - 304 Black Bayou Road — raw sewage flowing into ditch from a sewer treatment behind the
residence.

Neal — 106 Levee Height- needs mowing, clean up; 114 Chandler Road — needs items along the
shoulder of the road removed out of easement as they are affecting proper drainage.

A motion was made by Mr. Probst seconded by Ms. Allen to approve the citations of the ordinance
violations as presented. Motion cartied unanimousty.

9 Under the Secretary / Treasurer’s report, Ms. Burley presented the following:

a) Audit - Related Parties Questionnaire needed to be completed by all Jurors and returned as part
of the annual audit.

b) Resolution 22-008 — Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire was presented for review and
adoption as part of the annual audit requirements, A motion was made by Mr. Yearby seconded
by Mr. Parker to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion cartied unanimously. (See
Addendum for Resolution 22-008.)

¢) Ms. Burley notified the Jurors and those present of the passing of Mr. Jerry Stallings who had
served as the Justice of the Peace for District 4 for over 20 years. Mr. Stallings was recognized
for his hard work and dedication to the parish. Ms. Burley informed the Jurors that the State
Supreme Court had been in contact with the Parish Office about the vacancy and wouid reach
out to other Justice of the Peace’s to cover his duties until an election could be held.

10) Work Orders of the Parish were brought forward by Mr. Tony Guillory, Superintendent.

These were: ‘
610 — 45 yards on Ellard; 15 yards on Poole Road, Ferriday; 30 yards on Hailey Road; 8 yards on ‘
Greathouse Road ditch; 3 yards on Mooselodge; 5 yards on Ron Road; 3 yards on Doty Road !
Pitrun — 3 yards on Jones Road ditch

Culverts — 15x34 needed on Brookewater; 24x36 needed on South Prong

Ms. Burley asked for time to see if the culvert needed for South Prong would be covered under the
DR 4462 project before purchasing.

A motion was made by Ms. Allen seconded by Mr. Neal to approve the work orders as presented. ;
Motion carried unanimously. i
|

Page 4 of 5



11) Work Orders needed for the Parish were brought forward by the Jurors.

Whittington — Gravel and drainage work needed on Old Boat Camp Road.

Mr. Ryan McGraw, resident — was present and asked for road work needed on Minorca Road. Ms.
Burley also informed Mr. McGraw that work was planned for this road under DR 4462,

Adams — Poole Road, Monterey needs reclaim and maintenance.

A motion was made by Mr. Yearby seconded by Ms. Allen to approve the work orders presented.
Motion carried unanimously.

12) Correspondence and Public Comments were next open for discussion. There were none.

13) There being no further items 1o discuss, a motion was made by Mr. Parker seconded by Mr.
Whittington to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.

Sandi T. Burley, Secretaty / Treasurer

Page 5 of 5




ORDINANCE: 2022-02

PARISH OF CONCORDIA MODIFICATION OF
CODES FOR SANITATION AS IT PERTAINS TO SEWAGE DISPOSAL

ORDINANCE 2022-02
CREATING CHAPTER 22, ARTICLE IIL:
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
(Reference Updates to Chapter 7)

WHEREAS, the Police Jury seeks to amend and modify the ordinance pertaining to sewage
disposal in the parish;

WHEREAS, the Police Jury has the authority under LRS 33:1236 to set and establish
regulations by their own government;

WHEREAS, Chapter 22, Article ITI: Sewage Disposal shall be added to support the Louisiana
Administrative Codes, Title 51, Part XTI Sewage Disposal

WHEREAS, the Parish adds these regulations in addition to all reference of sewage and septic
disposal for residential dwellings;

WHEREAS, the Police Jury seeks to add the penalty for improper sewage disposal by violators
to be the sum of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per day, per instance;

SECTION (1) BE IT ORDAINED, by the Concordia Parish Police Jury in regular session
convened, that it shall be added and modified the regulations pertaining to sewage disposal;

SECTION (2) BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or resolutions or parts of
them in conflict herewith are hereby repealed;

SECTION (3) BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this ordinance creates Chapter 22, Article
III: Sewage Disposal to the Parish Code of Ordinances;

Be it ordained and adopted this 28™ day of February, in regular session, a motion was made by ‘
___seconded by and the votes were recorded as follows: f

Yeas: Nays: Abstain: Absent:

Collin Edwards. President Sandi T. Burley, Secretary / Treasurer



" Title 51

PUBLIC HEALTH—SANITARY CODE
Part XIII. Sewage Disposal

Chapter 1. General
[formerly Chapter 13 Subpart A]

§101. Definitions
[formerly paragraph 13:001]

A. As used in this Part, the terms defined in this
Chapter supplement any definitions which may be set
forth in law and shall have the following meanings
and/or applications, unless the context or use thereof
clearly indicates otherwise, or more explicit definitions
and/or applications are referenced. Terms not defined or
referenced herein shall have the meanings as defined in
the other Parts of the sanitary code of the state of
Louisiana. In any instance where a term defined herein is
also defined in one or more other Parts of this Code, the
definition contained in this Part shall be given preference
as it pertains to sewage disposal.

Commercial Treatment Facility (designed in
accordance with §503)—any treatment facility which is
required by the state health officer whenever the use of
an individual sewerage system is unfeasible or not
authorized.

Community Sewerdge System—any sewerage system
which serves multiple connections and consists of a
collection and/or pumping/transport system . and
treatment facility.

Conventional Septic Tank System-—a septic tank

system which consists of a septic tank{s) followed by a
subsurface absorption field.

' Facility or Facilities—any or all of the apparatus and

appurtenances -associated with a sanitary sewage
treatment system, element, or process.

Gravelless Pipe—a proprietary device which may be
used in lieu of conventional subsurface absorption field
materials when approved by the state health officer.

Individual Mechanical Plant—a treatment facility
which provides primary and secondary treatment of
sanitary sewage by use of aerobic bacterial action which
is sustained by mechanical means.

Individual Sewerage System—any system of piping
(excluding the building drain), and/or collection and/or
transport system which serves one or more connections,
and/or pumping facility, and treatment facility, all located

on the property where the sanitary sewage
originates; and which utilizes the individual
sewerage system technology which is set forth in
Chapter 7 Subchapter B of this Part, or a commercial
treatment facility which is specifically authorized for
use by the state health officer.

Limited Use Sewerage System—a sewerage
system which may be authorized by the state health
officer for installation or use for a structure or
dwelling which is occupied less than four days in a
week, and the use of which generates less than 100
GPD of sanitary sewage.

Manufacturer—a person who engages in the
business or practice of constructing individual
mechanical sewerage treatment systems, and who
is responsible for having the system evaluated in
compliance with §725.D of this Part.

- Person—any natural person, . partnership,
corporation, association, governmental subdivision,
receiver, tutor, curator, executor, administrator,
fiduciary, or representative of another person, or
public or private organization of any character.

Premises—any structure or dwelling of any
construction whatsoever in which a person may live,
work, or congregate.

Sanitary Sewage—any and all human waste
and/or domestic waste, the disposal of which
requires a sewerage system approved or authorized
by the state health officer. Sanitary sewage may
include its conveying liquid and/or any other liguid
or solid material which may be present therein.

Secondary Treatment Standard—a sewage
effluent water quality standard which prescribes a
maximurm 30-day average concentration of
biochemical oxygen demand (5-day basis) of 30
milligrams per liter {mg/l}, and a maximum daily
concentration of biochemical oxygen demand (5-day
basis} of 45 mg/l. The 30-day average concentration
is an arithmetic mean of the values for all effluent
samples collected in the sampling pericd. The
analyses to be performed for the purpose of
determining compliance with these effluent



limitations and standards shall be in accordance with the
eighteenth edition of the "Standard Methods for the
Examination of Water and Wastewater," available from
the American Public Health Association 1015 Eighteenth
Street NW, Washington, D.C. 20036, except where
otherwise specified. :

Septic Tank System—an individual sewerage system
which consists of a septic tank(s) followed by a process
which treats and disposes of the septic tank effluent.

Sewerage System-—any system of piping {excluding
the building drain and building sewer) and/or coliection
and/or transport system and/or pumping facility and/or
treatment facility, all for the purpose of collecting,
transporting, - pumping, treating and/or disposing of
sanitary sewage.

Subdivision for the purpese of these regulations— -

a. the division, or the process or results thereof,
of any land into two or more lots, tracts, parcels, or
plots, any one of which has an area of less than 3 acres;
or

b. the re-subdivision of land heretofore divided
into lots, tracts, sites or parcels; provided, however, that
minimum lot size restrictions presented in §511.B shall
not apply to:

i. a subdivision legally established and
recorded prior to July 28, 1967; or

it.  a small parcel of land sold to or exchanged
between adjoining property owners, provided that such
a sale or exchange does not create additional lots.

¢. Note: For the purpose of these regulations, the
requirements for wetlands might be more stringent.

Sub-Manufacturer—a person or entity authorized by
a licensed manufacturer to construct, or assembie
individual sewerage systems, or any portion thereof.

Trailer Coach—any of the various forms of structures
which are equipped, or capable of being equipped, with
wheels, including, but not limited to, travel trailers, truck
coaches or campers, mobile homes, trailers, and/or tent
campers, whether capable of moving under its own
power or not, and where a person ar persons may live,
work, or congregate.

Trailer Park—any lot, tract, parcel or plot of land
upon which more than one trailer coach is or may be
located, and where trailer coach spaces are rented or
leased.

-,

AUTHORITY NOTE: The first source of authority for
promulgation of the sanitary code is in R.S. 36:258(B), with
more particular provisions found in Chapters 1 and 4 of Title 40
of the Loulsiana Revised Statutes. This Part is Promulgated in
accordance with R.S. 40:4{A){6) and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1343 (June
2002).

Chapter 3. General Requirements for
Sewerage Disposal
[formerly Chapter 13 Subpart B]

§301. Plumbing Fixtures
[formerly paragraph 13:002]

A. All premises shall be provided with plumbing
fixtures as prescribed in Part XIV of this Code. Such
plumbing fixtures shall be connected to a
community sewerage system whenever feasible or
to an individual sewerage system which is
specifically approved for the premises by the state
health officer after it is determined that connection
to a community sewerage system is unfeasible and
that the installation and operation of an individual
sewerage system is not likely to create a nuisance or
a public health hazard.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4(A)6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20). -

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 (June
2002).

§303. Responsible Parties
[formerly paragraph 13:003]

A. A person who owns, operates, manages, or
otherwise controls any premises, shall provide for
sewage disposal in a manner which is in compliance
with this Code.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A}{6) and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 {June
2002).

§305. Discharges
[formerly paragraph 13:004-1]

A. A person shall not directly or indirectly
discharge, or allow to be discharged, the contents or
effluent from any plumbing fixtures, vault, privy,
portable toilet, or septic tank, into any road, street,
gutter, ditch, water course, body of water, or onto
the surface of the ground.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).



HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 (June 2002).

§307. Installation
[formerly paragraph 13:004-2]

A. No component part of a sewerage system shall be
installed wherever tontamination of a ground water
supply may occur. The location of any sewerage facility
shall not conflict with the placement requirements for a
water well which are set forth in Part Xll of this Code.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R:S. 40:5(9)(20). :

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 (June 2002).

§309. Previous Permits
[formerly paragraph 13:005]

A, Any permits issued, or approval of plans and
specifications granted prior to the effective date of the
1998 revisions of this Part shall remain in effect as it
relates to the design of the sewerage system, unless the
state health officer determines there exists a need for
revision of such permits or approvals.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.5. 40:4(A}(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9)(20). )

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hespitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 (June 2002).

Chapter 5. Community Sewerage
Systems
[formerly Chapter 13 Subpart C]

§501. Permits
[fermerly paragraph 13:006]

A. A person shall not construct or operate a
community sewerage system, or make a modification of
an existing system which changes the system's capacity,
effluent quality, point of discharge, hydraulic or
contaminant loadings, or operation of the component
units of the system without having first obtained a
permit from the state health officer No community
sewerage system shall be constructed, or modified to the
extent mentioned above, except in accordance with
plans and specifications for installation which have been
approved as a part of a permit issued by the state health
officer prior to the start of construction or medification.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4(A)(6)
and R.5. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 (June 2002).

§503. Plans
[formerly paragraph 13:007]

A. Detailed plans and specifications for the
construction or modification of a community sewerage

system for which a permit is requested shall be
submitted by the persan who is the owner, his legal
agent or who has responsible charge of  the
facilities. The review and approval of plans and
specifications submitted for issuance of a permit
will be made in accordance with the design
standards presented in "Recommended Standards
for Sewage Works," 1990 Edition, promulgated by
the Great Lakes and Upper Mississippi River Board
of State Sanitary Engineers and available from-
Health Education Service, P.O. Box 7126, Albany,
New York 12224, Proposals which deviate
significantly from the standards must be submitted
to the state health officer with supporting
documentation.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4(A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of

Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1344 (june
2002). _

§505. Operation and Maintenance
[formerly paragraph 13:008-1]

A. All component facilities of a community
sewerage system shall, at all times, be maintained in
the same configuration as permitted, in working
order and operated efficiently to minimize upsets,
discharges of excessive pollutants, bypassing of
discharges from the system, and health hazards and
nuisances. Operator staffing and training, laboratory
and process controls, maintenance during nermal
periods of equipment downtime, backup
equipment, and spare parts shall be provided as
needed to maintain continuous compliance with the
effluent limitations and standards established for
the facility by the state health officer and to avoid
any bypass or any overflow from the system.

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:008-2] Community
sewerage systems shall be operated and maintained
s0 as to consistently produce effluent water quality
meeting the minimum requirements of the
secondary treatment standard. Additional effiuent
standards may be established by the state health
officer as needed based upon downstream uses of
receiving waters.

C. [Formerly paragraph 13:008-3] The bypass of
any raw or partially treated sewage from a
community sewerage system is prohibited, except
where unavoidable to prevent a potential threat to
Public Health and Safety or severe property
damage, and where no feasible alternatives to
bypass exist. The use of alternatives to bypassing,



such as auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of
untreated wastes, maintenance during normal periods of
equipment downtime, or installation of adequate backup
eguipment shall be utilized to the maximum extent
feasible to avoid bypassing.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. ;10:4(A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9){20). '

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1345 (June 2002).

§507. Records
[formerly paragraph 13:009]

A. By request, copies of reports and suitable daily
analyses and records of daily operations shall be
submitted monthly to the state health officer.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5{9)(20). .

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1345 {June 2002).

§509. Land Application
[formerly paragraph 13:010]

A. No sewage sludge, or sewage treatment effluent
shall be applied to land for treatment, disposal, irrigation
or other purposes without a permit from the state health
officer. The Louisiana Department of Environmental
Quality should also be contacted regarding other
approvals or permits required by that agency for land
application projects.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Deparfment of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1345 (June 2002).

§511. .General Requirements
[formerly paragraph 13:011-1]

A. Connections to Community Sewerage Systems.
Where an established community sewerage system
{either public or private} is available, and there is ample
water supply, all plumbing fixtures within any structure
shall be connected to such community sewerage system.
Determination by the state health officer of the
availability of a community sewerage system shall take
into consideration, among other aspects, the separation
(both horizontal and vertical) of the structure in question
and the sewer main or lateral, political or geographic or
legally created boundaries, and the available capacity of
the sewer system. :

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:011-2] Community
Sewerage System Required. Community sewerage
systems shall be provided for all new subdivisions and
developments where lots are sold or leased. The
developer/owner shall be responsible for the provision
of adequate sewage treatment and disposal. The use of

individual sewerage systems in lieu of a community
sewerage system may be authorized and will be
considered under the following circumstances.

1. In subdivisions comprised of less than 125
lots, when the developer submits a comprehensive
drainage plan as well as a proposal for restrictive
covenants which detail requirements for perpetual
maintenance of drainage. This requirement shall
apply for all new subdivisions and developments.

2. When the total anticipated design flow to
the sewerage system does not exceed 1,500 gpd,
and where no food service is involved as per
§1301.A.2.

3. On large lots, where an area of one acre or
more is involved, having a minimum frentage of 125
feet. '

4, The installation would be located on a lot,
plot or site which has a minimum area of 22,500
square feet, and a minimum frontage of 125 feet.

5. For subdivisions when each and all lots have
a minimum area of at least 22,500 square feet and a
minimum frontage of 125 feet, except that the 125
foot frontage requirement may be waived for up to
15 percent of the total number of lots in the
development if:

a. minimum frontage on each lot in question
is not less than 60 feet, and;

b. the width of each lot in question is at
least 125 feet.

6. For parishes in which the parish governing

. authority has enacted and enforces a formal sewage

permitting system (requiring approval of individual
sewage disposal systermns by the state-health officer
prior to issuance of any parish permits) and when
the lots or sites in question meet any of the
following criteria:

a. minimum area of 22,500 square feet and
a minimum frontage of 80 feet;

b. minimum area of 16,000 square feet and
a minimum frontage of 80 feet where an approved
individual mechanical plant is to be utilized;

c. minimum area of 12,000 square feet and
a minimum frontage of 60 feet where an approved
individual mechanical plant is utilized and is
followed by 50 feet of modified absorption field -
(see Chapter 7 Subchapter B, §733.A).




7. Where lots of "record" (i.e., lots created by
formal subdivision pricr to July 28, 1967) are combined
{in accord with the definition of a subdivision) to create a
new, larger, single lot, and no re-subdivision of the
property is involved. On July 20, 2002 and thereafter, in
no case shall the newly created lots have less than 50
feet of frontage or be less than 5,000 square feet in area.

8. For single lots or sites, regardless of size,
remaining in substantially developed previously
established subdivisions, when, in the opinion of the
state health officer, a hazard to the public health will not
result.

9. For single lots or sites, regardless of size, when
the installation of an individual sewerage system is
proposed in order to renovate or replace a pre-existing
sewerage system. Such installation may be allowed
when, in the opinion of the state health officer, a public
health hazard or nuisance will not result. This provision
shall apply to the renovation or replacement of pre-

existing systems only and shall not be utilized to -

circumvent other requirements, particularty those
relative to minimum lot size for new residences and
subdivision development, of this code.

C. [Formerly paragraph 13:011-3] Effective October ..

20, 2000, this rule applies to new individual sewerage
system installations, upgrades and/or modifications to
existing systems required as a result of an investigation
by the Office of Public Health (OPH) into an allegation
that a violation of Part Xl of the Louisiana sanitary code
has occurred or is occurring, and has the potential for
causing harm or creating a nuisance to the general public
(R.S. 40:1154). Such individual sewerage systems with a
capacity up to and including 1,500 gpd, that produce
treated effluent, and which, by design, do not
significantly reduce the amount of off-site effluent, shall
be followed by an effluent reduction system constructed
as described in Chapter 7 Subchapter B, §§731 and 733
of this Part.

D. [Formerly paragraph 13:011-4] The state health
officer may consider for approval, on an individuai basis,
proposals for developments that are of a unique nature,
such as a development over water, or irregular
configuration, where individual sewage disposal is
proposed, where the development, by its very nature
(e.g., where commonly or jointly owned property is
involved), is clearly not addressed by the current
considerations of this Code.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4(A)(6),
R.S. 40:5(9)(20), and R.S. 40:1154(A).

HISTORICAL NOTE Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1345 (June
2002), amended LR 28:1591 (July 2002).

Chapter 7. Individual Sewerage
Systems '
[formerly Chapter 13 Subpart D]

Subchapter A. General Requirements

§701. Permits
[formerly paragraph 13:012-1]

A. A person shall not install, cause to be
installed, alter subsequent to installation, or operate
an individual sewerage system of any kind without
first having obtained a permit from the state health
officer. No person shall install, cause to be installed,
or alter subsequent to installation an individual
sewerage system of any kind except in accordance
with the plans and specifications for the installation
which have been approved as a part of a permit
issued by the state health officer. Such permits shall
be issued in a two-stage process in accordance with
§701.BandC.

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:012-2] Upon receipt
of a request for such permit, and approval of plans
and specifications . for the proposed individual
sewerage systern (which shall accompany any such
request for permit), a temporary permit, authorizing
the installation of said system, may be issued. Any
such temporary permit shall be in writing and shall
not be issued until, with respect to the property and
its surroundings, the state health officer has
determined that connection to a community-type
sewerage system is not feasible, and that the
condition of the soil, drainage patterns, the lot
siza/dimensions, and other related factors are such
that the construction and use of properly designed
individual sewerage facilities are not likely to create
a nuisance or public health hazard.

C. [Formerly paragraph 13:012-3] A final permit
approving the installation, shall be issued only upon
verification that the individual sewerage system has
been installed in compliance with this code. The
verification of such installation shall be determined
by means of an on-site inspection conducted by a
representative of the state health officer and/or in
the form of a completed "Certification by Instalter"
form submitted to the state health officer by the
licensed installer. The installer shall notify the
appropriate local Parish Health Unit prior to the
installation of an individual sewerage system. The



sanitarian shall not issue final approval for this system
unless hefshe has received a completed and signed
certification by installer form. The certification by
- installer shall be submitted to the state health officer
within 15 days after completion of the installation. A
final permit shall be issued and provided to the
owner/occupant of the premises to be served by the
individual sewerage system.

D. [Formerly paragraph 13:012-4] If a consumer
“currently owns, is contemplating purchasing and having
installed, or is an installer of Individual Mechanical
Sewage Treatment Plants, that consumer should be
made aware that: :

1. it has become apparent that the electrical
compenents of Individual Mechanical Sewage Treatment
Plants which require connection to a source of electricity
may not be properly connected to that electricat source
in some cases, Specifically, mechanical sewage treatment
plants, using electrical power may require a properly
installed Ground Fault Current Interrupter (GFCI);

2. the Office of Public Health has specific statutory
authority and mandates to protect the public health
from the improper treatment and disposal of sewage.
This office will offer the public consultation with regard
to the appropriate sewage treatment system that should
be used in a specific application, considering system
design for properly treating sewage, sizing for the
number of people using the system, location of the
system, and other health considerations, as necessary.
However, the Office of Public Health does not have the
authority to inspect or approve electrical connections,
are not qualified in the area of such electrical
connections and will not assume responsibility for such
electrical safety considerations;

3. accordingly, proper electrical connections must
be made to the air pump/blower andfor any other
electrical components that are integral parts of an
individual mechanical sewage treatment plant, and that
a qualified electrician should perform or examine the
installation(s} for appropriate wiring and installation, as
well as the connection to the ground fault current
interrupter.

E. [Formerly paragraph 13:012-5] Permits for the
instatlation of individual sewerage systems shall not be
issued for lots within a formal subdivision unless an
official recorded plat/property survey has been filed with
and subsequently approved for use of individual
sewerage systems by the Office of Public Health.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S, 40:4(A)(6}
and R.S. 40:5{9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1346 (June
2002). -

§703. Plans _
[formerly paragraph 13:013-1]

A. The review and approval of pilans and
specifications for the proposed individual sewerage
systemn shall be made in accordance with the
"Regulations  Controlling the Design and
Construction of Individual Sewage Systems" {See
Chapter 7, Subchapter B).

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:013-2] Individual
sewerage systems, other than conventional septic
tank systems, ie., septic tanks followed by a
subsurface disposal system, including those facilities
built in conflict with the state of Louisiana sanitary
code, shall comply with all provisions of the
Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Wastewater Discharge Permit. The Louisiana
Department of Environmental Quality should be
contacted for information regarding wastewater
discharge permits. The state health officer may
establish other limitations or standards, as needed,
in consideration of the water quality of affected
surface water bodies and groundwaters.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of

Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1347 (June
2002}).

§705. Installation of Individnal Sewerage Systems
[formerly paragraph 13:014-1]

A. A person who wishes to engage in the
business of installing or providing maintenance of
individual sewerage systems shall obtain, in
accordance with the procedures set forth in §737 of
this Part, a license for such activity prior to making
any such installations or providing maintenance.
Such a license shall not be required, however, for an
individual wishing to install an individual sewerage
system, other than an individual mechanical plant,
for his own private, personal use. Individual
mechanical plants shall be installed and
maintenance provided by licensed individual
sewerage system installers and/or maintenance
providers only.

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:014-2] A person
installing or providing maintenance of an individual
sewerage system and the person who is the owner
of the premises shall be responsible for compliance
with §§701 and 703.



AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1347 (June 2002).

§707. Maintenance and Operation
[formerly paragraph 13:015]

A. Individual sewerage systems shall be kept in.

service and in a serviceable condition sufficient to insure
compliance with this code and in order to avoid creating
or centributing to a nuisance or a public health hazard.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A){6)
and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1347 {June 2002).

§709. Septic Tank Systems
[formerly paragraph 13:016]

A. Where a community-type sewerage system is not
available, a septic tank system may be used provided
that the requirements of §§511.B, 701, 703.A, and 705
are complied with.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9){20}.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitats, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1347 (June 2002).

§711.  Individual Mechanical Plants
- [formérly 13:017-1]

A. An individual mechanical plant may be used where
a community-type system is not available, and where the
state health officer determines that a conventional septic
tank system (septic tank-absorption field) would not be
expected to function properly, and where the
requirements of §§511.B, 701, 703.B, and 705 are
complied with.

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:017-2] Permits, per the
requirements of §701, for the installation of individual
mechanical plants, shall not be issued except and unless
the manufacturer of the mechanical plant has received a
manufacturers license in accordance with the
requirements of §735.A, and has received appropriate
certification from DHH/OPH.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6}
and R.S. 40:5(9}{20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28;1347 (June 2002).

§713.  Other Individual Sewerage Systems
[formerly paragraph 13:018-1]

A. Where a person proposes innovative processes or
design features other than those described in Chapter 7
Subchapter B of this Part, a limited number of
experimental or developmental installations may be
approved where: either failure of the installation or

insignificant benefits to performance and cost is not
expected, based on current engineering data and
literature. The total number of such installations
shall not exceed three throughout the state and
shall be approved under the following conditions.

B. [Formerly  paragraph 13:018-2] Each
installation shall be installed only in accordance
with plans and specifications and testing procedures
which have been specifically approved for each
installation as a part of a permit issued by the state
health officer prior to the instailation.

C. [Formerly paragraph 13:018-3] The permit for
each installation shall be for a period of one year
and may be renewed under the provisions of §713.

D. [Formerly paragraph 13:018-4] Should an
innovative process fail, the owner of the premises
and the person proposing the' innovative process
shall upgrade or replace the installation to bring it
into compliance with the applicable provisions of
this Part.

E. [Formerly paragraph 13:018-5] After the
experimental or developmental wuse of an
installation is completed, the permit issued under
this Section may be revised to remove the
restrictions cited in Subsections 713.B and C if the
state health officer determines that the available
data show that continued use of the installation will
not result in non-compliance with applicable
provisions of this Chapter. Such a revision of a
permit issued under §713 shall apply only to the
individual installation approved under that permit,
and should net be construed as being an approval of
the system design for other existing or future
installations.

F. [Formerly paragraph 13:018-6] Proprietary
Devices. Proprietary devices are all devices designed
to reduce, process, and treat alt or a select portion
of wastewater generated within the individual
home. This includes water recycle and reuse
devices, water conservation devices, composting
units, and other devices intended to reduce the
volume of waste generated or water consumed. The

~approval of a proposal to utilize a proprietary device

may only be granted by the state health officer.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A){6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, 1R 28:1347 [June
2002).



Subchapter B. Design and Construction
| Regulations ‘
~ [formerly Chapter 13 Appendix A]

§715. Septic Tanks
[formerly Section I of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:1.1 of Appendix A] A septic
tank is a watertight tank made of steel, concrete or other
approved materials in which the settleable solids of
sewage settle out and are largely changed into liquids or
gases by hacterial decomposition. The remaining residue
in the tank is a heavy, biack semi-liquid sludge which
must be removed from the tank periodically. Although
the completely digested sludge contains relatively few
disease germs, in cleaning the tank it is impossible to
remove the digested sludge without removing some
undigested material. Therefore, it is particularly
important that the removed sludge be disposed of in a
safe manner. There are commercial service companies
that will contract for septic tank cleaning and sludge
disposal. Such commercial services are controlled by a
permit system in accordance with §301 of this Part.

B. [Formerly paragraph A:1.2 of Appendix A] Multiple
compartment septic tanks or single chamber septic tanks
in series provide more effective treatment than single
chamber tanks of the same total capacity; therefore, the
use of multiple compartment tanks or single tanks in
series is encouraged. However, single chamber septic
tanks are acceptable.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:1.3 of Appendix A] The
velocity of flow through the tanks must be such that
maximum solids and scum retention is achieved. Vertical
cylindrical tanks must have horizontal (inlet-to-outlet)
separation of at least 24 inches.

1. Tees or baffles must be used at the inlet. The
outlet must be designed so as to preclude floating solids
from escaping from the tank. The inlet tee or baffle
diverts the incoming sewage toward the bottom of the
tank without disturbing the scum which forms on the
surface of the liquid, and the outlet prevents the surface
scum from flowing out of the tank.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:1.4 of Appendix A] The
minimum total septic tank liquid capacity required is 2
1/2 times the estimated average daily design flow.
Sewage loading criteria for determining the average daily
design flow and organic loading are contained in Chapter
15 of this Part. One-bedroom residences may, however,
utilize a 500 gallon tank.

NOTE; The minimum allowable total septic tank volume
for all applications is 500 gallons.

E. [Formerly paragraph A:1.5 of Appendix A] The
distance between the inlaét and outlet openings in
the tank wall, measured horizontally, shall be not
less than 24 inches. The distance between the inlet
and outlet shall exceed the width of rectangular and
oval-shaped tanks.

F. [Formerly paragraph A:1.6 of Appendix A] The
tank shall operate with a liquid depth between a
minimum of
30 inches and a maximum of 72 inches measured

vertically from the invert of the outlet (overflow -

level) to the bottom of the tank. Recent septic tank
studies have indicated the shallower tank to be
more efficient and is therefore preferred.

G. [Formerly paragraph A:1.7 of Appendix A] For
tanks having straight vertical sides, the dimension
between the top of the tank and the liquid level
shall not be less than 15 percent of the liquid depth.
In horizontal cylindrical tanks, the volume of the air
space above the liquid shall not be less than 15
percent of the liquid capacity. In the latter case, this
condition is met if the liquid depth (distance from
outlet finvert to bottom of tank) is at least 79
percent of the diameter of the tank.

H. [Formerly paragraph A:1.8 of Appendix A] A
single tank may be divided into two or more
compartments by means of internal partitions. Each
compartment shall conform to the dimensions
limitations for complete tanks and shall have a
liquid capacity of at least 250 gallons. The total
liquid capacity shall conform to the requirements
for single chamber tanks. No tanks shall have more
than three compartments.

I.  [Formerly paragraph A:1.9 of Appendix Al The
tank shall be constructed of materials which are
corrosion resistant and provide a watertight
permanent structure. The cover of the tank shall be
designed for a dead load of not less than
150 pounds per square foot. Concrete covers must
be reinforced with steel and must be not less than
4 inches thick. Metal septic tanks shall comply with
the requirements of §715.0. Tanks of other
materials such as fiberglass will be reviewed for
acceptance on an individual basis. They will be
required to comply generally with the basic
applicable standards for metal septic tanks.



J. {Formerly paragraph A:1.10 of Appendix A] Access
to the septic tank for cleaning and inspection shall be
provided by a removable cover or manhole. Both inlet
and outlet devices as well as each compartment in
multiple compartment tanks must be accessible.
Manholes, when used shall be at least 20 inches square
or 24 inches in diameter and provided with covers which
can be sealed watertight. Septic tanks with removable
covers must be provided with an 8-inch inspection hole
over the inlet and the outlet.

K. [Formerly paragraph A:1.11 of Appendix A} Either
tees or baffles shall be provided at the inlet of the tank
and shall extend upward at least 6 inches above the
liguid level of the tank. The inlet tee or baffie shall
extend downward to at feast 6 inches below the liquid
level, but it shall not extend below the level of the lower
end of the outlet tee or baffle. At least 2 inches of open
space shall be provided above the baffle or tee to
provide ventilation to the tank through the building
plumbing system.

L. [Formerly paragraph A:1.12 of Appendix A] On the
outlet side the tee or baffle shall extend downward to a
distance below the water surface equal to 40 percent of
the liquid depth of tanks with vertical sides and 35
percent of liquid depth of tanks of other shapes as
measured to the nearest inch. If a tee or baffle is used in
the outlet the upper end shall extend 6 inches above the
liquid level.

M. [Formerly paragraph A:1.13 of Appendix A] Inlet
and outlet fittings {tees or ells}) must be of cast iron,
schedule 40 PVC or ABS plastic or other approved
material.

N. [Formerly paragraph A:1.14 of Appendix A] The
invert of the inlet shall be located at least 2 inches above
the invert of the outlet.

0. [Formerly paragraph A:1.15 of Appendix A] Metal
septic tanks shall be prefabricated of a minimum of 14
gauge commercial grade steel. Corrosion protection
shail, at a minimum, consist of a hot-dipped asphalt
coating of at least 0.025-inch thickness properly applied
to all surfaces of the new, clean, bare metal.

P. [Formerly paragraph A:1.16 of Appendix A] The
location of a septic tank shall comply with minimum
distance requirements from water wells, water lines, etc.
as contained in Part XlI, of this Code.

Q. [Formerly paragraph A:1.17 of Appendix A] The use
of septic tanks in series is encouraged. The first tank shall
have at least a 500-gallon liquid capacity and all

subsequent tanks shall have at least 300-gallon
liquid capacities. The total capacity of all tanks in

. series must comply with the capacities for septic

tanks as prescribed in §715.D.

R. [Formerly paragraph A:1.18 of Appendix A]
Piping from the house to the septic tank must be
such that the waste flow does not disturb the
retention of scum and sludge in the tank. To attain
this, the inlet piping from the house must have a
minimum diameter of four inches and be laid on a
slope of at least 1/8 inch per foot. The slope for the
last 10 feet of line preceding the septic tank must
not exceed 1/4 inch per foot. All plastic piping,
excluding perforated pipe, must be a minimum of
SDR 35 sewer and drainage pipe or equivalent.

S. [Formerly paragraph A:1.19 of Appendix A]
Backfill around septic tanks must be made in thin
layers thoroughly tamped in a manner that will not
produce undue strain on the tank. Sufficient soil
cover can be provided over the top of the septic
tank to permit grass growth. However, no other
obstruction to access (i.e., concrete slabs, buildings,
etc.) shall be allowed.

T. [Formerly paragraph A:1.20 of Appendix Al

Septic tanks should be inspected every six years and
pumped at least every eight years by a licensed
sewage hauler.

U. [Formerly paragraph A:1.21 of Appendix A]
Untreated or uncoated metal septic tanks shall not
be used.

V. [Formerly paragraph A:1.22 of Appendix A]

Abandoned septic tanks {tanks no longer in active’

use} shall be pumped out by a licensed sewage
hauler, then removed or the cover discarded and
the tank filled with soil to natural grade. The
contents of the abandoned tank shall not be placed
into a newly installed individual sewerage system.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A}(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)}(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1348 (June
2002).

§717.  Septic Tank Effluent

fformerly Section 11 of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:2.1 of Appendix A]
There is a common belief that sewage after
treatment in a septic tank is pure water, or very
nearly so. This is false. The effluent or liquid flowing
from the tank is still foul and dangerous. The septic



tank cannot be depended upon to remove disease
germs. The discharge of the effluent from septic tanks
into street gutters, surface ditches, or streams is
prohibited.

B. [Formerly paragraph A:2.2 of Appendix A] The
treatment level of a septic tank is referred to as primary
treatment.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:2.3 of Appendix A] The
preferred method of treatment for septic tank effluents
is accomplished through the use of soil absorption
trenches. Small oxidation ponds or sand filter beds may
be used in lieu of absorption trenches only where seil
and drainage conditions or available space prevent the
use of absorption trenches. The level of treatment of
these units is referred to as secondary treatment.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:2.4 of Appendix A] The use
of absorption trenches, oxidation ponds and filter beds
for the treatment of septic tank effluents is discussed in
detail in the following Paragraphs of these standards.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A}{6}
and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE:; Premulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1349 {June 2002).

§719. Absorption Trenches
[formerly Section III of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:3.1 of Appendix A] Where
soil conditions are satisfactory and sufficient land is
available, septic tank effluent shall be disposed of in
absorption trenches. This consists of a system of covered
gravel (or other approved aggregate) filled trenches intc
which the septic tank effluent is applied so as to permit
the liquid to seep into the soil. By action of
microorganisms in the soil, the organic matter is
converted into mineral compounds.

B. [Formerly paragraph A.3.2 of Appendix Al A
number of variables determine whether an absorption
trench is feasible, including: soil porosity (permeability},
ground water table, available space, and the rate at

which septic tank effluent enters the soil (percolation

rate). In general three conditions should be met.

1. The soil percolation rate must be within the
acceptable range.

2. The maximum elevation of the ground water
table should be at least 2 feet below the bottom of the
proposed trench system.

3. Clay formations or other impervious strata
should be at a depth greater than 4 feet below the
bottom of the trenches.

C. [Formerly paragraph A.3.3 of Appendix Al
Unless these conditions are satisfied, the site is
unsuitable for a subsurface sewage disposal system,
and an alternative method must be utilized.

D. [Formerly paragraph A.3.4 of Appendix Al The
acceptability of soil for an absorption trench system
and the reguired size of such a system is currently
based upon the "Percolation Test" described below,

1. Three or more tests must be made in
separate test holes spaced uniformly over the
proposed absorption field site.

2. Dig _or bore a hole, with_ horizontal
dimensions of from 4 to 12 inches and vertical sides
to the depth of the proposed absorption trench. In
order to save time, labor, and volume of water
required per test, the holes may be bored with a 4-

inch auger.

3. Carefully scratch the bottom and sides of

the hole with a knife blade or sharp-pointed
instrument_in_order to remove any smeared soil
surfaces and to provide a natural soil interface into
which water _may percolate. Remove all loose
material from the hole.

4. To conduct the test, fill the hole with clear
water. This pre-wetting procedure should normally
be accomplished on the day pricr to the percolation
rate measurement. This procedure is to insure that
the soil is given ample opportunity to swell and to
approach the operating condition of the wet season
of the year. Thus, the test should give comparable
results in the same soil whether made in a dry or in
a wet season. '

5. With the exception of sandy soils,
percolation rate measurements shall be made on
the day following the procedure described under
§719.D.4 above. Add water until the liguid depth is
at least 6 inches, but not more than 12 inches from
a fixed reference point. Measure the drop in water
level over a_60-minute period. This drop is used to
calculate the percolation rate. Section 1501.B.1
(Figure 1) shows methods of percolation rate
measurement. If the drop in liquid depth in the first
30 minutes is less than one inch, it is unnecessary to
continue the test for the full 60-minute period.

6. The distance the water falls in 60 minutes in
each of the three test holes is recorded. The average
drop for_the three holes is used to determine the




+

-total length of absorption trench from Table 1 below.

More than 1 _72
12 83
1 _87
10 91
9 _96
_8 106
7 104
6 110
3 117
4 127
3 142 '
Less than 3 Not acceptable for absomption
field

NOTE: ‘A minimum of 160 linear feet of field line shall be

provided.
*_or per 150 gpd of design flow for non-residential applications,

" E. [Formerly paragraph A:3.5 of Appendix A] Many
different designs may be used in laying out an absorption
trench system. The choice will depend on the size and
shape of the available disposal area, the capacity
required and the topography of the area.

F.  [Formerly paragraph A:3.6 of Appendix A] The
septic tank effluent is applied to the absorption field
through a system of level bottomed trenches.
Conventional field lines are laid on a slope of 2 to 3
inches per 100 feet. Gravelless pipe and other
distribution chambers must be laid as ¢lose as possible to
a slope of 1 inch per 100 feet. A distribution box may be
required for equal distribution of the effluent. Section
1501.B.2 and 3 (Figure 2 and 3} show a typical layout of a
conventional absorption trench system for flat and
sloping areas.

G. [Formerly paragraph A:3.7 of Appendix A] To
provide the minimum reguired backfill depth and earth
cover, the depth of the absorption trenches must be a
minimum of 18 inches. Additional depth may be needed
for contour adjustment for extra backfill under the
distribution line or for other design purpeses. However,
the total depth must not exceed 24 inches.

H. [Formerly paragraph A:3.8 of Appendix A] Careful
construction is important in obtaining a satisfactory soil
absorption system. Section 1501.B.4 (Figure 4) shows
details fer absorption trench construction.

I. [Formerly paragraph A:3.9 of Appendix A]
Individual trenches shall not be greater than 100 feet in
length and not less than 18 inches in width. The center
line distance between individual trenches shall be at

least 6 feet. In addition, the absorption trenches
shall be located at least 10 feet from any dwelling or
property line.

1. [Formerly paragraph A:3.10 of Appendix A]
The location of the absorption trenches shall
comply with minimum distance requirements from
water wells, water lines, etc., as contained in Part XlI
of this Code.

K. [Formerly paragraph A:3.11 of Appendix A] In
every case, at least two trenches shall be used.

L. [Formerly paragraph A:3.12 of Appendix A]
Trench bottoms must be level to promote even
distribution, thereby minimizing premature failure
of a portion of the trench. During excavation,
attention must be given to the protection of the
soil. Care must be taken to prevent sealing of the
surface on the bottom and sides of the trench.
Trenches should not be excavated when the soil is
wet enough to smear or compact easily. All smeared
or compacted surfaces must be raked to a depth of
1 inch and loose material removed before the
backfill is placed in the trench.

M. [Formerly paragraph A:3.13 of Appendix A]
Conventional field lines shall consist of perforated
nan-metallic pipe meeting one of the following
standards.

PVC sewer pipe and fittings (Thin wall), ASTM D2729-93
Smooth wall polyethylene (PE) pipe, ASTM F810-93, for use in
waste disposal absorption fields;

SRP pipe and fittings, ASTM D2852-93.

1. In every case, the minimum acceptable
diameter is
4 inches. Although the trench bottom is level,
conventional field pipes must be laid on a slope of
between 2 to 3 inches per 100 feet to provide even
distribution of the liquid throughout the trench.

N. [Formerly paragraph A:3.14 of Appendix A]
Where conventional field pipe is used, it must be
surrounded by clean graded gravel or rock, broken,
hard-burned clay brick or similar material. The -bed

material may range in size from
1/2 inch to 2.5 inches. The gravel must extend from
at least

2 inches above the top of the pipe to at least 6
inches below the bottom of the pipe. The top of the
stone should be covered with either untreated
building paper, or similar pervious material to



prevént the gravel from becoming clogged by the earth -

backfill {see §1501.B.4 (Figure 4)].

0. [Formerly paragraph A:3.15 of Appendix A] Where
gravelless pipe or distribution chambers are used, the fill
must be porous soil or sand which allows the passage of
water : in
all directions with a 6-inch layer below the pipe and filled
4 to 6 inches above grade and spread 3 to 4 feet on
either side of the trench. Only gravelless pipe or other
distribution chambers specifically approved for use in
Louisiana by the state health officer may be used. The
total length of gravelless distribution products required is
the same as for conventional absorption trenches.

P. [Formerly paragraph A:3.16 of Appendix A] For an
absorption trench to work properly, it must have access
1o air, generally through the soil interstices of the
backfill. Therefore, the absorption trench should be
backfilled with 4 to 12 inches of pervious soil, hand-
tamped and  then
4 to 6 inches of earth. Care should be taken to aveid
compacting of the backfill.

Q. [Formerly paragraph A:3.17 of Appendix A] All of
the above listed requirements, with the exception of the
protection of water supplies, are aimed at preventing
absorption trench clogging and premature failure. 1n
addition, the septic tank should be inspected every six
years after installation and pumped, as necessary, to
prevent solid overflow to the soil absorption system and
subsequent clogging and failure.

R. [Formerly paragraph A:3.18 of Appendix A]
Absorption trenches shall not be located:

1. beneath driveways, parking or other paved
areas;

2. in areas that may be subjected to passage or
parking of heavy equipment or vehicles, or storage of
materials;

3. beneath buildings or other structures.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A}(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1349 {June 2002).

§721. Oxidation Ponds
[formerly Section IV of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:4.1 of Appendix A] An
oxidation pond is a shallow pond designed specifically to
treat sewage by natural purification processes under the
influence of air and sunlight. The stabilization process
consists largely of the interactions of bacteria and algae.

overfilled with about

Bacteria digest and oxidize the constituents of
sewage and render it harmless and odor free, Algae
utilize carbon dioxide and other substances
resulting from bacterial action and through
photosynthesis produce the oxygen needed to
sustain the bacteria in the treatment process.
During the detention period, the objectionable
characteristics of the sewage largely disappear.

B. [Formerly paragraph A:4.2 of Appendix A] The
minimum surface area of an oxidation pond must be
no less than 400 square feet with a 4 to 5 foot
average liquid depth and vertical side walls. This
minimum size pond is adequate for design flows of
up to 400 gallons/day {gpd). For design flows in
excess of 400 gpd, the pond area must be increased
to provide sufficient volume (at the 4 foot depth) to
hold 30 days worth of flow {a 30-day retention
period). For wastes with high BOD loadings, special
consideration for increasing pond size must be
given.

C. [Fermerly paragraph A:4.3 of Appendix A]
Section 1501.B.5 (Figure 5) shows a typical layout
for a septic tank-oxidation pond system. The actual
layout of any pond system will be governed to a
great extent by the topography of the particular
location. However, an oxidation pond must be
located so as to comply with the minimum distance
requirements from water wells, lines, etc, as
contained in Part Xll of this Code. It is also desirable
for aesthetic reasons to locate it as far as possible;
but at least 50 feet from any dwelling and no less
than 20 feet from the property line to water's edge
at normal operating line.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:4.4 of Appendix A] As
mentioned, the use of the minimum surface area of
400 square feet requires that an oxidation pond be
furnished with vertical side walls so that an
adequate volume for treatment is provided. Section
1501.B.6 (Figure 6} shows a type of construction
utilizing treated timber which under normal soil
conditions is acceptable for the vertical side walls of
a 20 foot by 20 foot oxidation pond with a 5 foot
average water depth. Section 1501.B.7 (Figure 7)

.shows a similar type of construction utilizing

concrete blocks. Either of these designs requires
very little maintenance.

E. [Formerly paragraph A:4.5 of Appendix A}
Vertical side walls must be of cypress or treated



timbers or concrete blocks and so constructed as to
provide a permanent structure.

F. [Formerly paragraph A:4.6 of Appendix A]
‘Although not encouraged, a pond may be constructed
with sloping sides and earthen levees. Such a design is
shown in §1501.B.8 (Figure 8). The design reguires a
minimum surface area of 625 square feet with a 5 foot
liguid depth at the center in order to achieve the
required volume. The cost of this design is less than that
of the vertical wall ponds referred to above, but more
space is needed and routine maintenance requirements
such as levee mowing are greater. The slope of the
natural earth side walls must not be shallower than one-
to-one (45-degree angle) [see §1501.B.8 (Figure 8)].

G. [Formerly paragraph A:4.7 of Appendix A] A septic
tank must precede the oxidation pond and must comply
with the septic tank requirements presented in these
regulations.

H. [Formerly paragraph A:4.8 of Appendix A] The pipe
from the septic tank to the pond as well as the outfall
pipe from the pond must be at least 4 inches in diameter
and placed at a minimum slope of 2 inches per 100 feet.
The inlet must extend 4 to 6 feet horizontally into the
pond and be directed downward at least 1 1/2 to 2 feet
betow the liquid surface level. The outlet must extend 4
to 6 feet horizontally into the pond and consist of a tee
© with the invert set at the operating water level of the
pond. One leg of tee must be open and extend above the
water level, while the down leg is extended 1 1/2 to 2
feet below the water level. The invert of the pond outlet
must be lower than the pond inlet invert [see §1501.B.8
(Figure 8)]. Additionally the invert of the pond inlet must
be at least 2 inches lower than the invert of the septic
tank outlet.

. [Formerly paragraph A:4.9 of Appendix A] The
pond shall be enclosed by a suitable non-climbable fence
to keep out children, pets and livestock. An open type
fence (woven wire) is preferable because it will not
restrict sunlight and air which are necessary for the
treatment. The fence shall be at least
5 feet in height and be provided with a locked gate.

). [Formerly paragraph A:4.10 of Appendix A]
Abandoned oxidation ponds (ponds no longer in active
use) shall be dewatered, allowed to dry and then filled
with soil to natural grade.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A){6)
and R.S. 40:5{9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1351 {June 2002).

§723. Sand Filter .
[formerly Section ¥V of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:5.1 of Appendix A]
Another alternative for the secondary treatment of
septic tank effluent is a deep-type sand filter bed.
Treatment in a sand filter bed is accomplished by
the action of microorganisms in a sand bed in which
the suspended solids of the septic tank effluent
have been trapped by filtration. It is important that
the sand bed remain aerobic throughout the
treatment process. This is accomplished by exposing
the sand surface to the air-as much as possible on a
continuous basis. Of course, the best way this can
be done is to place no cover whatsoever over the
sand bed. Since this is not aesthetically desirable for
homes, a coarse gravel cover of clean, washed
gravel, not to exceed 6 inches in depth over the bed
is permitted. No other cover is acceptable. A filter
bed system is shown in §1501.B.9 {Figure 9).

B. [Formerly paragraph A:5.2 of Appendix A] The
sand filter bed is constructed by placing perforated
pipe near the bottom of a rectangular area of the
required size in a layer of gravel covered by a layer
of coarse sand 24 inches deep. On top of this are
placed distribution lines (perforated pipe} likewise
encased in a layer of gravel [see §1501.B.10 (Figure
10)]. The septic tank effluent is distributed speedily
in the gravel cover spreading over the top of the
sand seeping slowly and vertically through the sand
to the bottom layer of gravel to be carried away in
the under drain line.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:5.3 of Appendix A]
Sand filter beds are to be constructed with a
minimum width of 12 feet and a minimum length of
25 feet. This minimum size filter bed is adequately
sized for design flows of up to 400 gpd. For greater
design flows, the required length shall be increased
by eight feet for each additional 150 gpd or porticn
thereof.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:5.4 of Appendix A] The
bed must be drained completely. This may require
the bed to be raised above natural ground level.

E. [Formerly paragraph A:5.5 of Appendix A] To
prevent sand infiltration into the underdrain, a layer
of graded gravel must be placed over the
underdrain line and the entire botiom of the filter
bed. All gravel must be clean and washed.



F. [Formerly paragraph A:5.6 of Appendix A] Filter
sand shall conform to the following standard
specifications.

 Number4 Numberd | 95-100

Number 14 60-80
Number 16 Number 28 5-20
Number 50 Number 48 0-5
Number 100 Number 100 0

G. [Formerly paragraph A:5.7 of Appendix A] At least
two distribution lines must be provided and they must
he sloped 2 inches to 3 inches per 100 feet. The lines
must be 4-inch diameter, 20-inch long farm tile, 2 feet to
3-feet lengths of vitrified clay bell-and-spigot sewer pipe
laid with open joints, or perforated nonmetallic pipe
meeting cne of the standards cited in §719.M. The ends
of the distribution lines must be half-closed [see
§1501.B.10 (Figure 10)].

H. [Formerly paragraph A:5.8 of Appendix A]
Underdrain pipe materials are the same as those for the
distribution pipe, however, the slope must be no less
than 4 inches per 100 feet.

I.  [Formerly paragraph A:5.9 of Appendix A] The
filter bed must be appropriately protected from surface
runoff water.

). [Formerly paragraph A:5.10 of Appendix A] The
filter bed must be located no less than 10 feet from the
property line,

K. [Formerly paragraph A:5.11 of Appendix A] The
location of the filter bed shall comply with minimum
distance requirements from water wells, water lines,
etc., as contained in Part Xl of this Code.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1352 (June 2002).

*Editor's Note: The address cited in §725.G has changed to:
Department of Health and Hospitals
'Office of Public Health
Engineering Services Section
P.O. Box 4489 .
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4489
§725. Mechanical Waste Water Treatment Plants
[formerly Section VI of Appendix A)

A. [Formerly paragraph A:6.1 of Appendix A]
Mechanical wastewater treatment plants are small
plants capable of providing primary and secondary
treatment of sanitary sewage. All are considered to be
aerobic treatment units.

B. [Formerly paragraph A:6.2 of Appendix A] An
individual mechanical plant will be permitted where
individual sewerage systems would currently be
permitted under prevailing rules as set forth in this
Part of the state sanitary code. Sewage loading
criteria for determining the average daily -design
flow and organic loading are contained in Chapter
15 of this Part.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:6.3 of Appendix A] An
individual mechanical plant will be permitted in lieu
of a conventional septic tank system ({septic
tank/absorption field) only in accordance with the
provisions of §511.B of this Code, and where a
conventional septic tank system could not be
permitted.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:6.4 of Appendix A]

. Permitted individual mechanical plants shall strictly

comply with National Sanitation Foundation
International Standard, NSF 40-1996 for Residential
Wastewater Treatment Systems (Class | Systems) as
revised May 1996 and published by NSF
International, P.O. Box 130140, Ann Arbor, Michigan
48113-0140 USA, and as has been approved by the
American National Standards Institute, 11 Waest
42nd Street, New York, New York 10036 as standard
ANSI/NSF 40-1996, revised May 28, 1996.

E. [Formerly paragraph A:6.5 of Appendix A] All
individual mechanical plants currently approved for
installation in Louisiana as of the effective date of
these regulations shall not be required to meet the
requirements of §725.D until March 1, 2001. Until
March 1, 2001, plants shall continue to comply with
the standards under which they were approved.
Effective March 1, 2001, all plants shall comply with
the standard as stated in §725.D.

F. [Formerly paragraph A:6.6 of Appendix A] In
addition to evidence of strict compliance with NSF
international Standard NSF 40-1996 (Class |
Systems), and ANSI/NSF 40-1996 (Class | Systems),
as are specified in §725.D of this Code, the following
Department of Health and Hospitals/Office of Public
Health (DHH/OPH) requirements shall also apply.

1. Testing/Evaluation (General)

a. All certifications of individual mechanical
plants shall be conducted by an American National
Standards Institute {ANSI} accredited certification
program testing/evaluation facility authorized for
such purpose(s). Verification of such certification
shall be provided to DHH/OPH, subject to




acceptance by DHH/OPH of such verification, as
prerequisite - to - consideration of any individual
mechanical (residential) plant for permitting in Louisiana.

b. Evidence of acceptance by DHH/OPH of an
ANSI accredited testing/evaluation facility, for purpose of
testing/evaluation of individual mechanical (residential)
plant(s) for permitting in Louisiana shall be
demonstrated upon execution of an appropriate
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU]}, or other, similar
contractual instrument, subject to terms and conditions
as may be imposed by DHH/OPH—said MQU to be
between DHH/OPH and the testing/evaluation facility.

¢. Successful completion of testing/evaluation of
an individual mechanical (residential) plant in
accordance with applicable provisions of this Code,
having been properly tested/evaluated and certified by
an appropriate facility, shall serve to allow the DHH/OPH
authorization of an individual mechanical {residential)
plant for permitting purposes in Louisiana for a period
not to exceed seven years from the date of such
DHH/OPH authorization, or until such time as an
appropriate revision to the prevailing testing/evaluation
standard for such purposes may become revised. Such
authorization of an individual mechanical (residential)
plant for permitting purpdses in Louisiana shall be in the
form of a written license by DHH/OPH to a manufacturer
of such individual mechanical (residential} plant(s),
subject to compliance with applicable provisions of this
Code—such license to be valid for the specified period,
annually renewable, and suspendable/revocable by
DHH/OPH in accordance with license revocation
procedures as specified in §735.F,

2. Licensing

a. In addition to evidence of compliance of an
individual mechanical (residential) plant having been
properly tested/evaluated and certified by an
appropriate facility, certain additional requirements shall
serve as a basis for licensing by DHH/OPH of such
individual mechanical (residential) plant in Louisiana.
These additional requirements shall apply, as
appropriate, to the manufacturer and/or manufacturer
representative, agent, sub-manufacturer or other
associated entity, as appropriate, involved in the
manufacture, marketing, sale, installation and/or
maintenance of such (any) individual mechanical
(residential) plant{s) in Louisiana. Further, with respect to
the testing/evaluation facility which may have certified
the individual mechanical plants being in compliance
with the testing/evaluation standard contained herein,

certain additional requirements, for licensing
purposes, shall apply.

b. These additional requirements are
specified as follows.

i. Testing/Evaluation Facility
Responsibilities

(@). In addition to providing
testing/evaluation services with - respect to
individual mechanical (residential} plants scheduled

for manufacture, marketing, sale, installation and -

maintenance in Louisiana, the testing/evaluation
facility shall also serve to provide oversight liaison
services both to the manufacturer of the individual
mechanical (residential) plant, as well as to DHH/
OPH. However, DHH/OPH communication with the
testing facility will be at the OPH Program Manager
level, or higher. While it is recognized that the
testing/evaluation facility may exercise its fiduciary
right to exact such fees or other reimbursement
costs as appropriate from a manufacturer (client),
under no circumstances may the testing/evaluation
facility exact such fees or other reimbursement
costs from DHH/OPH in order to compensate for
any of these regulatory requirements. Accordingly,
the following requirements shall be included in the
MOU.

" (b). It shall be required that all individual
mechanical (residential) plant manufacturers will be
inspected annually by the testing/evaluation facility
having certified the related individual mechanical
{residential) plant and that DHH/OPH shall be, upon
request, furnished with copies of all reports of such
inspections, which shall include at a minimum the
verification {or reverification) of all "forms" used in
the manufacture (or sub-manufacture) of individual
mechanical (residential) plants.

{c). it shall be required that a
representative number, up to 4 but in, no case more
than 10 percent, of all manufacturers authorized
sub-manufacturers of individual mechanical
(residential) plants will be inspected annually by the
testing/evaluation facility having certified the
related individual mechanical (residential) plant and
that & report shall be retained by the
testing/evaluation facility and shall, upon request by
DHH/OPH, make such information available to
DHH/OPH, which shall include at a minimum the
verification of service records for all related



individual mechanical (residential} plant installations and
availability of stand-by parts.

(d). It shall be required that a representative
number of installations in Louisiana, but in no case less
than 10, of all individual mechanical (residential} plants
manufactured by manufacturers and their respective
sub-manufacturers will be inspected annually by the
testing/evaluation facility having certified the related
individual mechanical {residential) pfant and that a
report shall be retained by the testing/evaluation facility
and shall, upon request by DHH/OPH, make such
information available to DHH/OPH, which shall include at
a minimum the verification (or re-verification} that
individual mechanical (residential) plants and their
respective installation{s) are in conformity with the plans
and specifications as are reflected in the
testing/evaluation report which was approved for the
related individual mechanical (residential) plant.

{e}. It shall be required that copies of all
inspection/audit reports conducted by a
testing/evaluation facility with regard to a client-related
manufacturer {or sub-manufacturer) of individual
mechanical (residential) plants will be retained by the
testing/evaluation facility and shall, upon request by
DHH/OPH, make such information available to DHH/QPH
upon completion of said report(s).

(f). It shall be required that copies of all
reports of non-compliance and/or reports of
complaint(s} investigations by a testing/ evaluation
facility with respect to a client-related manufacturer (or
sub-manufacturer) of individual mechanical {residential)
plant(s) will be retained by the testing/evaluation facility
and shall, upon request by DHH/OPH, make such
information available to DHH/OPH upon completion of
said report(s).

{g). 1t shall be required that any
modification(s) to an individual mechanical (residential)
plant, once certified by an ANSI accredited
testing/evaluation facility, shall be subject to re-
evaluation by the testing/evaluation facility and that
written acceptance of the change by the ANSI accredited
testing/evaluation facility shall be received by the
manufacturer prior to incorporating the change; this
information also to be transmitted to DHH/OPH.

{(h).In the event that the original
testingfevaluation  facility no longer conducts
testings/evaluations and certifications of individual
mechanical (residential) plants for a specific
manufacturer, it will be the responsibility of the

testing/evaluation facility to insure an orderly
transfer of the documentation supporting
certification to the manufacturer for transmittal to

"another ANSI| accredited testing/evaluation facility

at the manufacturers choice.

ii. Manufacturer/Sub-Manufacturer
Responsibilities

(a).In  addition to other, related
requirements of this code as pertain to the
manufacture, marketing, sale, installation and
maintenance of individual mechanical (residential)
plant(s) in Louisiana, the manufacturer (or sub-
manufacturer, or installer, as appropriate} of an
individual mechanical plant shall also be responsible
for insuring compliance with the following.

{b). 1t shall be required that the
manufacturer/sub-manufacturer  shall - annually
inspect at least 10 percent of its authorized
installers in Louisiana of certified individual
mechanical (residential} plants (products) and shall
provide written reports of such inspections, which
shall minimally address certain matters specified by
DHH/OPH, both to the testing/evaluation facility of
record as well as to DHH/OPH.

{c}. It shall be required that the
manufacturer/sub-manufacturer(s) installers of
individual mechanical (residential) plant{s) must
maintain a current list of all sales/installations of
individual mechanical (residential} plants and shall,
upon request by DHH/OPH, make such information
(i.e., name, address of purchaser, date of sale, etc.)
available to DHH/OPH.

d). It shall  bhe required that
manufacturers/sub-manufacturers/installers, as
appropriate must provide a minimum two-year
service policy to the purchaser of each individual
mechanical (residential) plant purchased/ installed
at no additional cost, with verification provided to
DHH/OPH and the purchaser, of such service policy
provision. The initial policy shall contain provisions
for four inspection/service visits {scheduled once
every six months over the two-year period) during
which electrical, mechanical, and other applicable
components are inspected, adjusted, and serviced.
The initial service policy shall also contain provisions
for an effluent quality inspection consisting of a
visual assessment of color, turbidity, and scum
overflow, and an olfactory assessment for odor.



{e).It shall be required that the
manufacturers/sub-manufacturers/installers, as
appropriate must make available (subject to the
purchaser's right of refusal) an  extended
service/maintenance agreement with terms comparable
to those in the initial service policy, in writing.

{f). The manufacturer/sub-manufacturer shall
insure that the individual mechanical (residential) plant
and its component parts are properly and easily
identified.

(g). The manufacturer/sub-manufacturer shall
secure such license(s) as may be required by other,
applicable provisions of this code for purpose(s) of
manufacture, marketing, sale, installation and/or
maintenance of individual mechanical (residential)
plant(s) in Louisiana—such license(s) requirement(s) to
include, at a minimum as condition of licensure, the
verifiable imposition of such insurance, bonding and
related requirements as may become stipulated by
DHH/OPH for purpose(s) of such related business
activities conducted in Louisiana.

(h). Manufacturers shall specifically authorize
the ANSI accredited testing/evaluation facility to release
to DHH/OPH all of the documentation outlined in terms
Subclauses i.(a}-(h) above. ‘

3. Certification

a. Licensing will be based on a two phase
certification process, as follows.

i. Initial Certification. Consisting of evidence of
successful completion of the herein prescribed testing of
an individual mechanical (residential]) plant, by the
appropriate ANSI accredited testing/evaluation facility
conjunctive with an actual onsite physical inspection and
audit of all plant manufacturer (company) and sub-
manufacturer facilities and production locations by the
appropriate ANSI accredited testing facility.

ii. Continuing Certification. Consisting of
evidence of an annual re-certification, re-inspection and
re-audit by the ANSI accredited testing/evaluation facility
of all plant manufacturers (company} and sub-
manufacturer facilities and production locations, as well
as an evaluation of a representative number (no less
than four) of all manufacturers authorized distributors
and plants (units/modeis) sold and installed, with
report(s) of such evidence available to DHH/OPH upon
request.

G. [Formerly paragraph A:6.7 of Appendix A] Persons
proposing to sell individual mechanical piants for
installation in Louisiana shall submit an evaluation report

indicating compliance with ANSI/NSF Standard
Number 40 and obtain approval from the
*Department of Health and Hospitals, Office of
Public Health, PO. Box 60630, New Orleans, LA
70160, prior to selling/installing plants in the state.
The compliance evaluation report shall be prepared
by an ANSI certified testing laboratory as required in
§725.F, and shall include positive identification of all
owners, officers, agents, stockholders, contractors,
sub-contractors, as may be in any manner or by any
means associated with the entity seeking a permit.

1. [Formerly paragraph A.6.7-1 of Appendix A]
Upon approval of an evaluation report by the
Department of Health and Hospitals, Office of Public
Health, the subject individual mechanical plant may
be permitted for use in Louisiana. The Office of
Public Health will maintain a list of licensed
Manufacturers and respective individual mechanical
plants permitted for salefinstallation in the state.

2. [Formerly paragraph A:6.7-2 of Appendix A]
Any alteration or modification of an individual
mechanical plant without the certification of the
ANS| certified testing laboratory and subsequent
approval of DHH-OPH shall constitute a viclation of
this Section and shall be grounds for
suspension/revocation of any permit or license held
by each person responsible for such changes,
alterations or modifications.

H. [Formerly paragraph A:6.8 of Appendix A]
Licenses shall remain valid subject to the following.

1. No person involved with the testing facility
either directly or indirectly, may become an owner,
partner, or stockholder of any company holding any
license to manufacture, submanufacture, install or
maintain individual mechanical treatment plants in
Louisiana within two years of the approval date of
said plant by the Office of Public Health.

2. Should a change of ownership occur, the
manufaciurer license for such plant shall be
rescinded.

3. The licensed Manufacturer shall submit to
the Office of Public Health, not later than January
31 of each year, proof that they have secured
general liability insurance in an amount of not less
than $1,000,000.

4. The licensed Manufacturer shall be
responsible for assuring that their mechanical plants
are sold only to licensed submanufacturers and



installers in order to prevent the installation of their
plants by unauthorized persons.

I. [Formerly -paragraph A:6.8-1 of Appendix A]
Persons appealing the denial of their application under
the Administrative Procedure Act shall post a cost bond
prior to the scheduling of such hearing. The plaintiff shall
forfeit the cost bond to the state when said appeal is
denied by the hearing officer. The hearing officer is to
determine the amount of the cost bond, on a per diem
basis. The costs shall include room rental, hearing officer
fees, court reporter fees, and transcript costs.

). [Formerly paragraph' A6.9 of Appendix A]

Individual mechanical plants and all components must be
installed in compliance with the minimum separation
requirements for water wells and appurtenances as
required in Part Xll of this Code.

K. [Formerly paragraph A:6.9-1 of Appendix A]
Individual mechanical plants should be installed at least
10 feet from the property line.

L. [Formerly paragraph A:6.10 of Appendix A]
Determination of compliance with NSF Standard Number
40 requirements and/or additional related requirements
provided for in this Subchapter shall be the responsibility
and sole authority of the state health officer acting
through the Office of Public Health.

M. [Formerly Part B paragraph A:6.11 of Appendix A]
Warranty/Maintenance/Service Provisions

1. The "Individual Mechanical Plant initial Warranty
Inspection/Service Report" must be submitted to the
state health officer after each warranty/maintenance
inspection is completed by the maintenance provider,
and will become part of the permanent record for each
system. A maintenance contract shall be offered to the
owner after the initial two-year service contract expires
in accordance with National Sanitation Foundation
Standard Number 40 relating to Residential Wastewater
Treatment Systems, adopted by the Board of Trustees of
the National Sanitation Foundation (NSF), Ann Arbor,
Michigan, as revised May 1996. The maintenance
provider shall notify the state health officer whenever an
extended service contract has been negotiated.

2. [Formerly paragraph A:6.12 of Appendix A] The
owner is responsible for perpetual maintenance of the
sewerage system and components thereof Proof of
perpetual maintenance of the system shall be provided
in the form of an extended service contract.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promuigated in accordance with R.S. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1352 (June
2002).

*Editor's Note: The address cited in §727.C has changed to:
Department of Health and Hospitals
Office of Public Health
Engineering Services Section
P.O. Box 448¢ :
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4489%

§727. Sanitary Pit Privy
[formerly Section VII of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:7.1 of Appendix A]
Where a dwelling is not served with water under
pressure, water carriage waste systems as covered
herein can not be used. In these cases, a pit privy or
other non water-borne system is required for
excreta disposal.

B. [Formerly paragraph A:7.2 of Appendix A] Pit
privies, when used, shall be located so that they will
not poliute domestic, private, or public water
supplies. To accomplish this, they must be located
on the downgrade from water wells and water
supply lines and in accordance with the minimum
distance requirements as contained in Part Xll of
this Code. Pit privies must be located at least four
feet from any fence, ditch or building to give room
for a proper earth mound. They must be housed as
separate units and must be located at least 10 feet
from the property line. '

C. [Formerly paragraph A:7.3 of Appendix A]
Details of the construction and maintenance of
approved pit privies may be obtained by referring to
a pamphlet entitled "Louisiana Type Sanitary Pit
Privy" which is available through the *Department
of Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, P.O.
Box 60630, New Orleans, LA 70160.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.

40:4(A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of

‘Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1355 {June

2002).

§729. Pumping Stations
[formerly Section VIII of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:8.1 of Appendix A]
When the elevation of a site prevents the use of
gravity flow to convey liquid from one location to
another, a pumping station [§1501.B.19 (Figure 22}],
consisting of a holding tank, pump(s), piping,
electrical controls, and other equipment as
necessary, must be provided.



B. [Formerly paragraph A:8.2 of Appendix A] Many
manufacturers build pumps, and in some cases complete
pump stations, for the special purpose of handling
wastewater, either raw, partially treated, or treated. Such
specially built pump stations may be used, provided all
other code requirements are met.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:8.3 of Appendix A] Pumps
utifized in pump stations must be suitable for the specific
application proposed. Pumps must be provided with
impellers and casings constructed of corrosion resistant
materials.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:8.4 of Appendix A] Pumps
shall be provided to accommodate required elevation
and hydraulic heads and peak flow rates, and be cycled
in a manner not to be unduly disruptive to any
downstream system.

E. [Formerly paragraph A:8.5 of Appendix A] The
pump station holding tank must be constructed of
materials suitable for septic tank use in accordance with
§715.1 and O of this Subchapter. Additionally, molded
fiberglass, reinforced polyester (FRP) resin tanks having a
minimum wall thickness of 1/4" are also acceptable.

F. [Formerly paragraph A:8.6 of Appendix A] Holding
tanks shall be constructed and installed with suitable
foundations to prevent settling due to soil conditions or
floating of the tank due to high water table elevations.

G. [Formerly paragraph A:8.7 of Appendix A] Pump
station holding tanks shall be constructed and installed
so as to be watertight. All wall seams, seams between
walls and tank floor, and openings such as for pipes and
wiring shall be sealed watertight. Additionally, all holding
tank covers and access openings shall be attached in
watertight manner by gaskets or grooves and should be
sufficiently above the ground, but in no case less than 3
inches above ground, to prevent the entrance of surface
runoff water.

H. [Formerly paragraph A:8.8 of Appendix A] The
holding tank shall have a minimum diameter or
dimension of 24 inches. The cover shall be equipped
with an access opening of sufficient size to allow for
pump maintenance and removal, but in no case less than
12 inches in diameter or dimension.

I. [Formerly paragraph A:8.9 of Appendix A] Pumps
shall be installed in such a manner as to allow for
removal and/or maintenance of the pump without
necessitating entry into the holding tank by maintenance
personnel. Pumps shall be provided with suitable means
of quick, convenient disconnection from discharge piping
and electrical wiring. Provisions must be made for lifting

the pump from the holding tank with minimal
exposure to the liquid in the tank.

l. [Formerly paragraph A:8.10 of Appendix A]
Suitable level control devices for use in the harsh,
corrosive environment encountered, shall be
provided to control pump .operation. The level
controls shall provide for the following functions:
"pump off," "pump on," and "high water alarm."

1. [Formerly paragraph A:8.10-2 of Appendix
Al All materials utilized within the holding tank,
whether above or below water level, shall be
constructed of materials resistant to corrosion from
the hostile operating environment of the tank.

2. [Formerly paragraph A:8.10-3 of Appendix
A] An audible and visual "high water alarm" shall be
provided and. shall be located in a conspicuous
location. A reset button should be provided for the
audible signal in a convenient location so that relief
can be easily obtained.

3. [Formerly paragraph A:8.10-4 of Appendix
A] The "pump off" level shall be set at the minimum
elevation as recommended by the specific pump's
manufacturer.

4, [Formerly paragraph A:8.10-5 of Appendix
A] The "pump on" level shall be set at elevation to
provide a minimum working volume of 10 percent
of the average daily design flow of the treatment
system.

5. [Formerly paragraph A:8.10-6 of Appendix
A] The "high water alarm" level shall be set so as to
provide for a net storage volume between the
"pump on" level and the "high water alarm level" of
10 percent of the average daily design flow of the
treatment system.

6. [Formerly paragraph A:8.10-7 of Appendix
A] A reserve volume may be provided between the
"high water level" and the invert of the inlet pipe to
the holding tank, if so desired.

K. [Formerly paragraph A:8.11-1 of Appendix A]
All electrical wiring and controls must. be
appropriate for the applications for which they are
used and meet prevailing electrical codes. Due
consideration for the exposure to a harsh
environment and the need for watertight
connections and conduit must be accounted for in
all electrical work.

1. [Formerly paragraph A:8.11-2 of Appendix
A] Electrical connections to the main panel in the



house must be made according to prevailing electrical
codes. '

2. [Formerly paragraph A:8.11-3 of Appendix A] The
pump must be wired for automatic level control with a
manual override located at the control panel.

L. [Formerly paragraph A:8.12 of Appendix A] Raw
sewage pumps and piping must accommodate the
passage of
2-inch solids.

M. [Formerly paragraph A:8.13 of Appendix A] Suction
and discharge piping for sewage effluent pumps must
conform to the pump manufacturer's recommendations.
However, piping should not be less than 1.25 inches in
diameter and be capable of withstanding a pressure of
75 psi. '

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.5. 40:4{A)(6)
and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1355 (June 2002).

§731. Effluent Reduction System Requirements
for Treated Wastewater
[formerly Section IX of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:9.1 of Appendix A]
Disinfectants. Where effluent discharges are required to
be disinfected, and chlorine is used as the disinfectant, a
- chlorine contact chamber is required. Calcium
hypochlorite, labeled for wastewater disinfection, shall
be added in sufficient concentrations to maintain a
minimum residual of 0.5 ppm total chlorine in the
effluent. In order to achieve the required chlorine
contact time, a baffled chlorine contact chamber
[§1501.B.11 (Figures 11, 12, 13)] designed to meet the
needs for each system with the specified liquid holding
capacity shall be used as follows.

’V : Sew ge‘fsggi - Liquid Capacity
GPD or less 30 gallons
501-750 GPD 45 gallons
751-1000 GPD 60 gailons
1001-1500 GPD 90 gailons

1. Any other disinfectant propesed for use should
provide an equivalent level of disinfection.

B. [Formerly paragraph A:9.2 of Appendix A] Pumping
Stations. Pumping station, when required, must be
constructed of approved materials, and must comply
with the applicable provisions of this Code.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:9.3 of Appendix A] Effluent
Reduction Systems. Individual sewage systems, with a

capacity up to and including 1500 gpd, that produce
a treated, off-site effluent, shall include an effluent
reducer as part of the overall system [§1501.B.12
(Figure 14)]. '

D. [Formerly paragraph A:9.4 of Appendix A]
Special situations may arise where an individual on-
site wastewater treatment system is allowed as per
§511.8 of this Code, but it is physically impossible to
install the required size of the effluent reduction
system or the effluent reduction system itself due to
lot size or when a limited use sewerage system is
installed in a marsh/swamp area or located over
water. The size of the effluent reduction system can
be reduced to the maximum amount the lot can
accommodate or the installation waived with the
authorization of the sanitarian parish manager.
Written notification of such authorization must be
submitted to the sanitarian regional director and a
copy attached to the "Application for Permit for
Installation of On-Site Wastewater Disposal System”
(LHS-47).

E. [Formerly paragraph A:9.5 of Appendix A] All
effluent reduction systems shall be installed by a
licensed installer. Existing field lines can not be used
as the effluent reduction system.

F. [Formerly paragraph A:9.6 of Appendix A] The
size of the effluent reduction system installed has to
correspond with the recommended size of the
sewerage system. For example if a 750 GPD plant is
required on the "Application For Permit For
Installation of On-Site Wastewater Disposal System"
(LHS-47), the applicant may instail a 1000 GPD
plant, however the size of the effluent reduction
system only has to correspond to the minimum size
required for a 750 GPD plant.

G. [Formerly paragraph A:9.7 of Appendix A] The
sample port for a sewerage system must be installed
immediately downstream of the system and in
accordance with the appropriate edition and
Section of NSF Standard 40, as currently
promulgated, as well as the applicable provisions of
this Code.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A}(6), R.5. 40:5(9)(20), and R.S. 40:1154(A).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Mospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1356 (June
2002).



§733. Effluent Reduction Options
[fermerly Section IX of Appendix A]

A. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-1 of Appendix A]
Effluent Reduction Field. This system is installed
downstream of a mechanical treatment plant or other
sewage treatment system listed in Chapter 7 Subchapter
B of this Code that produces an effluent, but does not by
design significantly reduce that effluent. The effluent
reduction field is essentially a soil absorption field as
described in §719 of this Subchapter, but with
modification as noted in this Section. Section 1501.B.13
{(Figure 15) has a diagram with specifications and cross-
sections of the effluent reduction field.

1. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-2 of Appendix A] If
there is not sufficient grade to install the sewerage
system and the effivent reduction field with gravity flow
to the discharge point, then a pump station in
compliance with applicable provision of this code must
be installed.

2. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-3 of Appendix A] The
force of the pumped effluent must be reduced by use of
a distribution box, "Tee," or similar appurtenance.

3. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-4 of Appendix A] The
effluent reduction field trenches shall be at least 18
inches wide and between 16 to 24 inches in depth.

4. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-5 of Appendix A] The
bottom of the effluent reduction field must be level,

5. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-6 of Appendix A] The
fill or cover material shall be of porous soil or sand which
allows the passage of water in all directions, with sod
started on top. Fill should be at least 4 to 6 inches above
grade and spread at least 3 to 4 feet on either side of the
trench.

6. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-7 of Appendix A] The
effluent reduction field (ERF) must be installed a
minimum of 10 feet from any property line. In addition
the ERF field location shall comply with the minimum
distance requirements from water wells and suction
lines, water pressure lines, etc., as contained in Parts Xl
and XIV of this Code.

7. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-8 of Appendix A] The
minimum length of the effluent reduction field shall be
determined by the treatment capacity of the sewerage
system.

o1 - Treatment Capacity of - 1" “Minimum Total Length' -
0 Sewerage System o i P oo iperField i
500 GPD or less OO fi
501-750 GPD 150 fi

751-1000 GPD 200 ft

1001-1500 GPD 300 0

8. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-9 of Appendix A]

.If more than one absorption trench is used to

provide the minimum required length of the
effluent reduction field, the distance between
individual trenches must be at least 6 feet with one
discharge pipe provided.

9. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-10 of Appendix
A] The pipe from the end of the effluent reduction
field to the discharge point must be solid.

10. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-11 of Appendix
A] A backwater valve must be provided at the end of
the effluent reduction field whenever the discharge
line . is less . "~ than
12 inches above the ditch flow-line.

11. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-12 of Appendix
A] Each individual trench must not be greater than
100 feet in length. Clam or oyster shells may be
substituted for gravel in the effluent reduction field.
if used, gravel must be clean, graded and 1/2-inch
to 2 1/2 inches in diameter. Other media may be
considered for use if determined to have acceptable
characteristics and properties. Although it may not
be noted in the attached figures (§1501.8.1-19), the
end of the discharge line must have a 1/2 diameter
PVC end cap over the lower half of the endpipe,
causing longer retention of the effluent and
providing greater opportunity for absorption. If the
end of the discharge line is more than 2 inches
lower than the absorption line, other provisions
must be made to cause the effluent to be retained
in the reduction field.

12. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-13 of Appendix
A] Gravelless pipe or other distribution chambers
may be used in lieu of conventional soil absorption
pipe. If gravelless pipe is used, the fill must be
porous soil or sand which allows the passage of
water in all directions, with a 6-inch layer below the
pipe and filled 4 to 6 inches above grade and spread
3 to 4 feet on either side of the trench.

B. [Formerly A:9.9-1 of Appendix A] Rock-Plant
Filter. All rock plant filters must be a minimum of 5
feet wide to a maximum of 10 feet wide.

1. {Formerly paragraph A:9.9-2 of Appendix A]
The square footage will be determined by the
treatment capacity of the sewerage system as
follows.



150 square feet
225 square feet
300 square feet
450 square feet

3 E-L . i
500 GPD or less
501-750 GPD

751-1000 GPD

1001-1500 GPD

a. Refer to §1501.B.14 (Figures 16 and 17) for a
schematic and cross section of a rock plant filter with a
sewerage system instailation.

2. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-3 of Appendix A] The
rock plant filter (RPF) must be installed a minimum of 10
feet from any property line. In addition, the RPF locaticn
shall comply with the minimum distance requirements
from water wells and suction lines, water pressure lines,
etc., as contained in Parts Xl and X1V of this Code.

3. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-4 of Appendix A] If
there is not sufficient grade to install the sewerage
system and the rock plant filter with gravity flow to the
discharge point, then a pumping station in compliance
with applicable provisions of this Part must be installed.

4, [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-5 of Appendix A] In
order to prevent backflow, a backwater valve is required
whenever the discharge line is less than 12 inches ahove
the ditch flow-line.

5. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-6 of Appendix A] Only
a standard shape bed may be installed with a minimum
width of 5 feet and of such length as to provide the
required square footage.

6. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-7 of Appendix A]
Plans for any other configuration must be submitted for
review and approval to the sanitarian regional director.

7. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-8 of Appendix A] A
liner will be required when the ground water level is
within 24 inches of the bottom of the trench.

8. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-9 of Appendix A] The
polyethylene liner may be of more than one layer
provided a total thickness of 16 mil is achieved.

9. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-10 of Appendix A]
When a liner is not required, the use of landscape fabric
is highly recommended to prevent weed intrusion.

10. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-11 of Appendix A] The
bottom of the bed must be level and be no deeper than
14 inches.

11. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-12 of Appendix A] A
depth of approximately 10 to 12 inches is best.

12. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-13 of Appendix
A] Gravel must be 2-3 inches in diameter and laid to
a depth of12 inches.

13. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-14 of Appendix
A] An
8-inch water level must be maintained. Gravel
should fill the filter bed to above surface grade to

prevent erosion.

14. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-15 of Appendix
A] The minimum 4-inch perforated inlet pipe must
be located no closer than 4 inches from the bottom
of the bed and supported by a footing of
noncorrosive material, such as concrete or treated
timber. '

15. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-16 of Appendix

A] The inlet shouid extend no more than 2 feet into

the rock plant bed and must be provided with a
"Tee" (with ends capped) extending the width of the
bed to within 1 foot of the side walls.

16. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-17 of Appendix
A] The outlet pipe shall also be set in a footing of
noncorrosive material (concrete or treated timber)
on the bottom of the bed with the same "Tee" and
configuration. The outlet must be elbowed up and
out [§1501.B.14 (Figure 17}].

17. [Formerly paragraph A:9.8-18 of Appendix
A] Do not allow plants to grow within 3 feet of the
inlet and outlet of the bed.

18. [Formerly paragraph A:9.9-19 of Appendix
A] A levee support system around the perimeter of
the filter should be constructed to exclude surface
water. The use of landscape timbers for this purpose
is acceptable. Other materials, such as concrete, can
also be used.

C. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-1 of Appendix A]
Spray lIrrigation. The spray irrigation system
[61501.B.15 {Figure 18)] uses an electric pump that
distributes the effluent to the yard through sprinkler
heads. It is highly recommended for spray irrigation
effluent to be chlorinated in a contact chamber,
sized according to §731.A, following the treatment
unit and preceding discharge. At a predetermined
level, a float switch activates a pump that forces the
effluent through piping to pop-up or elevated
rotating type sprinkler heads. Evaporation and seil
inftltration of the dispersed effluent should prevent
any run-off from occurring.




1. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-2 of Appendix A] A
pump station system must be sized according to use and
comply. with the applicable provisions of this Part.

2. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-3 of Appendix A] The
pressure pump must be a minimum of one-half horse
power capable of producing a minimum flow of
12 gallons per minute and maintaining 25 pounds per
square inch at all sprinkler heads.

3. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-4 of Appendix A] The
pump will be activated by a high/low water switch
through an automatic on/off switch. The pump must be
deactivated through a low-volume cut off switch.

4, [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-5 of Appendix A] A
time cycle device may be used to allow for specific
sprinkling times (e.g., nighttime, afternoon). The pump
chamber must be of adequate liquid capacity to allow
sufficient storage to accommodate the desired time
settings.

5. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-6 of Appendix A] A
minimum of three 4-inch type sprinkler heads coded for
wastewater effluent, spaced a minimum of 40 feet apart
are required.

6. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-7 of Appendix A] The
spray irrigation sprinklers shall comply with American
Society of Agricultural Engineers [ASAE) Standard § 398.1
(Procedure for Sprinkler Testing and Performance
Reporting).

7.. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-8 of Appendix A] The
slope of the land shall be such as to facilitate drainage
away from any water well or well suction lines. The edge
of the spray and its drainage must be a minimum of 50
feet from any private water well and its associated
suction lines and 10 feet from any property line. The
. edge of the spray and its drainage shall be a minimum
100 foot from public any water supply well and its
associated suction lines, if any. In addition, the edge of
the spray and its drainage shall be a minimum of 25 feet
from any potable water {pressure) lines. As contained in
Parts X!l and XIV of this Code.

8. [Formerly paragraph A:9.10-9 of Appendix A]

Exceptions due to lot size, topography or other
constraints may be authorized by the sanitarian parish
manager with written notification of such authorization
to the sanitarian regional director and a copy attached to
the LHS-47.

D. [Formerly paragraph A:9.11-1 of Appendix A]
Overland Flow. When the size of the property is 3 acres

or more, an overand flow may be utilized
[§1501.B.16 (Figure 19}].

1. [Formerly A:9.11-2 of Appendix A] The
discharge through perforated pipe must be
distributed in such a manner as to confine the
effluent on the property owned by the generator.

2. [Formerly A:9.11-3 of Appendix A] The
location of the overland discharge must have a
permanent vegetative cover.

3. [Formerly A:9.11-4 of Appendix A] The slope
of the land shall be such as to facilitate drainage
away from any water well or well suction lines. The
discharge point and the field of flow shall be a
minimum of 50 feet from any private water well and
its associated suction lines. The discharge point and
the field of flow shall be a minimum 100 foot from
public water supply wells and its associated suction
lines, if any. In addition, the discharge point and the
field of flow shall be a minimum of 25 feet from any
potable water (pressure) lines. As contained in Parts

~ Xl and X1V of this Cade.

4, [Formerly A:9.11-5 of Appendix A] A header
should be used at the end of the discharge line to
help disperse the effluent and to discourage
channelization. The point of discharge must be such
that there is at least a 200 foot flow of effluent over
the property of the generator.

5. [Formerly A:9.11-6 of Appendix A}
Construction of the system should be such that it is
not closer than
20 feet from the property line.

E. [Formerly A:9.12 of Appendix A] Mound

System or Subsurface Drip Disposal [§1501.8.17 and-

18 (Figures 20 and 21)]. Either can be considered by
DHH-OPH on a case to case basis. Plans and
specifications must be submitted to DHH-OPH
engineering services in consultation with the
sanitarian regional director for review and approval
prior to construction.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A}(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of

Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1357 (June
2002).



Subchapter C. Licensing Procedures for
Installers
and Manufacturers of Individual
Sewerage Systems
[formerly Chapter 13 Subpart F]

§735. General Procedures
[formerly paragraph 13:022-1}

A. Manufacturer License. A person who wishes to
engage in the business or practice of constructing an
individual mechanical sewerage treatment system, and
who is responsible for having the system evaluated in
compliance with §725.F of this Part, shall first obtain a
license for each approved tested design of plant
manufactured, from the state health officer.

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:022-2] Installer License. A
person who wishes to perform installations or
maintenance of individual sewerage systems shall first
obtain the appropriate type of individual sewerage
installer license. Two types of licenses are offered:

1. a basic license for installation and maintenance
of facilities other than individual mechanical plants; and

2. a combination license which allows the
installation and maintenance of individual mechanical
plants as well. A combination license may be cbtained
only in . conjunction with a basic license, and is
considered to be a separate licanse.

C. [Fermerly paragraph 13:022-3] Sub-Manufacturer
License. A person or entity authorized by a licensed
manufacturer to construct, or assemble individual
sewerage systems, or any portion thereof, prior to
offering such systems for installation in Louisiana, is
required to obtain an individual sewerage system sub-
manufacturer license.

D. [Formerly paragraph 13:022-4] Application.
Applications for an Individual Sewerage System Installer
andfor Maintenance Provider License, as well as for
Individual Sewerage System Sub-Manufacturer License,
may be obtained from the nearest Parish Health Unit.
Applications, including any required endorsements or
certifications, must be submitted to the Sanitarian
Program Administrator—Individual Sewage, Sanitarian
Services Section, Office of Public Health. All licenses shall
be issued by this office upon successful fulfillment of all
application requirements and completicn of any required
examination(s), and shall be valid throughout the entire
state.

E. [Formerly paragraph 13:022-5] Renewal. All
licenses expire on January 31 of each vyear
Applications. for renewal including all required
endorsements must be received no later than
December 1 of each year in order to insure timely
renewal. The renewal of a license will be withheld

from any applicant who has not complied with the

requirements of this Part.

F.  [Formerly paragraph 13:022-6] Suspension or
Revocation of License. In addition to other remedies
provided for by law, a license may be suspended
upon determination by the state health officer of
non-compliance with the requirements of this code.
In the event of suspension, notice shall be given to
the licensee having committed said violation(s) that
his license has been suspended pending an
Administrative Hearing in the matter to determine
whether sufficient grounds for revocation exist.

G. [Formerly paragraph 13:022-7] Reinstatement
of License. Upon revocation of a license, an installer,
maintenance provider, manufacturer, or
submanufacturer shall not be eligible for any license
for a minimum period of two years from the date of
revocation for cause.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A¥6) and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE; Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1359% {June
2002).

§737. Installer/Maintenance Provider Qunalifications

A. Fora basic license, the applicant shall submit,
along with the license application and evidence of
successful completion of an examination, an
affidavit certifying that he has obtained, read, and
understands the provisions of this Part of the
Sanitary Code, including Chapter 7 Subchapter B of
this Part, and the reguirements for minimum
distance to sources of contamination in Part Xli and
will make installations and/or provide maintenance
in compliance therewith. Copies of a standard
affidavit form and request for examination form
may be obtained from any parish health unit.

B. For a combination license, the applicant shall
submit, along with the license application and
evidence of successful completion of an
examination, an endorsement from the licensed
manufacturer for the brand of plant he wishes to
install and/or maintain, specifying that the applicant
is qualified to install and/er maintain said plants, in
compliance with the requirements of this Code.



Applications will not be processed unless accompanied
by the required endorsement.

C. For a maintenance license, the applicant shall
submit the license application and evidence of successful
completion of an examination, an endorsement from the
licensed manufacturer for the brands of plants he wishes
to maintain, specifying that the applicant is qualified to
maintain said plants, in compliance with the
requirements of this Code. Licensed manufacturers shall
issue such endorsements to any and all individuals who
present themselves for training and who meet the
manufacturer's minimum standards for competency.

D. All persons seeking to apply for a new license or
renewal must, at their own expense, attend and
successfully complete a training course approved by the
Sanitarian Services Section of the Office of Public Health,
Department of Health and Hospitals, as a prerequisite for
licensure. This course will be offered at least once
annually.

E. All licensees must successfully repeat this training
course every five years.

F. A listing of training course dates, times, and
locations shall be maintained in the various regional
offices by the sanitarian regional directors.

G. In the event an approved training course is not
available within 60 days, the sanitarian services section
may issue a temporary license provided the applicant
meets all of the other requirements cited in this Section
and successfully completes an examination administered
by the sanitarian regional director. This temporary
license shall terminate upon failure to attend the next
available approved training course. Applicants who fail to
attend the required training course shall not be issued
another temporary license, but may reapply for a license
upon successful completion of the reguired training
course.

H. Applicants for an installer's, combination, or
maintenance license shall submit, along with the license
application, proof that they have secured, for at least the
duration of the license, general liability insurance in an
amount of no less than $100,000/5300,000.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4(A){6)
and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1359 (June 2002), amended
by the 2005 Regular Session, House Concurrent Resolution No. 1, LR
31:1914 (July 2005}).

§739. Sub-Manuafacturer Qualifications
[formerly paragraph 13:023-2]

A. Applicants for a Sub-Manufacturer License
shall submit, along with the license application, an
endorsement from the manufacturer(s) for the
brand(s) of plant(s) he wishes to construct,
certifying that he is qualified to construct said
plant(s) properly and in accordance with the
requirements of this Code. Applications will not be
processed unless accompanied by the required
endorsement(s).

B. Applicants for a Sub-Manufacturer License
shall submit, along with the license application,
proof that they have secured, for at least the
duration of the license, general liability insurance in
an amount of no less than $100,000/$300,000.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{4)(6) and R.5. 40:5{9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1360 {June
2002).

§741. Manufacturer Qualifications
[formerly paragraph 13:023-3]

A. All licensed manufacturers must be in
compliance with the requirements of §725.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4(A}6) and R.5. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1360 {Jjune
2002).

Chapter 9. Sewage Hauling

§901. General Requirements
[formerly paragraph 13:019-1]

A. A person shall not engage in the business or
practice of hauling the contents of septic tanks,
cesspools, vaults, or similar facilities without first
obtaining a license from the state health officer.
Applications for a license to haul sewage may be
obtained from the nearest parish health unit.
Applications must be sent to the Sanitarian Program
Administrator—Individual ~ Sewage,  Sanitarian
Services Section. All licenses shall be issued by this
office and shall be valid throughout the state.

B. [Formerly paragraph 13:019-2] All licenses
expire on June 30 of each new year. Applications for
renewal must be received no later than May 1 of
each vear in order to insure timely renewal. Initial
applications received between July 1 and March 30
will receive a license for that fiscal year (July 1



through June 30); those initial applications received after
March 30 will receive a license for the remainder of that
fiscal year in addition to the next fiscal year.

C. [Formerly paragraph 13:015-3] Upon
determination by the state health officer of substantial
non-compliance with the requirements of this code with
respect to the hauling and/or disposing of the contents
of septic tanks, cesspools, vaults, or similar facilities, {not
including grease traps), written notice, in compliance
with R.S. 49:961, shall be given to the licensee having
made said violations that he shall, within 15 working
days, present to the notifying office any and all evidence
to show compliance with the requirements for retention
of the license. In the absence of such evidence, the
licensee shall be further notified that his license has
been temporarily suspended pending a hearing in the
matter to consider whether sufficient grounds for

- revocation of the license exist. The licensee shall be .

notified, in writing, of the date of the hearing within
seven working days from the date of the notice of
" suspension. The date for such hearing shall ba within 45
working days of the notice of suspension.

D. [Formerly paragraph 13:012-4] Upon revocation. of
a license, a hauler shall not be eligible to reapply for the
same license for a period of two years from the date of
revocation for cause.

E. [Formerly paragraph 13:019-5] Disposal of the
contents of septic tanks, cesspools, vaults, or similar
facilities shall be made in accordance with the
arrangements, approved in the permit, for disposal at an
approved sewage treatment facility. As a prerequisite to
obtaining a license, evidence for such arrangements,
including copies of any agreements with cooperating
sewage treatment facilities, shall be submitted. The
disposal of the contents of septic tanks, cesspools,
vaults, or similar facilities into ditches, canals, rivers,
lakes, pits, or other surface water courses is prohibited.

F. [Formerly paragraph 13:019-6] No person shall
convey or cause to be conveyed through the streets,
roads, or public waterways any contents from a septic
tank, vault, cesspool, or privy, except in tight enclosed
containers, so as not to be offensive to smell or injurious
to health.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. 40:4(A)(6}
and R.S. 40:5(9){20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1360 {June 2002).

Chapter 11. Non-Waterborne
Systems

§1101. General Requirements
[formerly paragraph 13:020-1]

A. Non-waterborne systems, such as a pit toilet
{or- privy), vault, pail, or chemical toilet, incinerator
toilet or composting toilet may be used when the
state health officer determines that it is impractical
or undesirable, i.e., such as water under pressure is
not available, either to connect to an existing
community-type sewerage system as specified in
§511.A or to construct or install a conventional
septic tank system or individual mechanical plant
and when in the opinion of the state health officer a
non-waterborne system will function without
creating a health hazard or nuisance.

B. [Formerly ~ paragraph  13:020-2] Non-
waterborne systems shall be located a safe distance
from any well, spring or other source of water
supply and, if possible, upon ground at a lower
elevation. Such distances shall conform to the
requirements of Part Xl of this Code. In soil types or
geological formations where sources of water
supplies may be polluted, the state health officer
may require the use of chemical toilets or concrete
vaults in lieu of pit toilets.

C. [Formerly paragraph 13:020-3] Non-
waterborne systems shall be properly maintained
and operated. The following shall be considered
defects in maintenance and operation of such
installations:

1. evidence of caving around the edges of the
pit;

2. signs of overflow or other evidence that the
pit, vault, or pail is full;

~ 3. evidence of light entering the pit except
through the seat when the seat cover is raised;

4, seat cover not in place;

5. broken, perforated, or unscreened vent
pipes;

6. uncleanliness of any kind in the foilet
building.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(8)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1361 {June
2002).



Chapter 13. Special Applications
[formerly Chapter 13 Subpart E]

§1301. General Requirements
{formerly paragraph 13:021]

A. A number of unique or special situations pose
certain problems with respect to sewage disposal. These
atypical cases are dealt with as follows.

1. Apartment complexes, condominium complexes,
hotels, motels, and other such complexes shall be
connected to a community sewerage system. A
commercial treatment facility shall be provided when no
existing community sewerage system capable of
accepting the additional loading exists.

2. Single commercial structures, where less than
1,500 gpd total flow is expected, and where the
connection to a community sewerage system to serve
other loading sources as well is not required, may utilize
either an individual or commercial sewerage system,
provided minimum lot size reguirements for the use of
individual sewerage systems are met.

a. A commercial treatment facility shall be
installed for business establishments where the
preparation of food and/or drink is the primary business
activity. ' ' :

3. Treatment facilities for very small trailer parks
which contain five trailer spaces or less shall be sized at
400 gallons per day per trailer space.

4, Where a community sewerage system is not
available, structures occupied three days per week or
less, and located in a marsh/swamp area or over water,
may utilize a limited use sewerage system comprised of
the following: '

a. a septic tank system consisting of three septic
tanks in series {or an acceptable three-cell or three-
compartment tank} followed by an automatic
chlorination device/system. The first cell shall have a
minimum liquid capacity of 500 gallons. The second and

third celis shall each have a minirum liquid capacity
of 250 gallons. Each of the three septic tanks {or
each compartment of a three-cell tank) shall meet
all design, material and construction requirements
for septic tanks as described in §715 of this Part. In
addition to the construction and material
requirements in Chapter 7, Subchapter B, the
following restrictions/exceptions shall also apply:

i.  metal tanks shall not be used;

ii. the tank(s) shall be demonstrated to be
water-tight;

iii. fiberglass tanks shall be adequately
coated to prevent deterioration by ultraviolet light;

iv. where multiple-compartment single
tanks are used, only one access opening, of 6-inch
minimum diameter, per cell shall be required; and

v. tanks set below the normal high-water
level, shall be anchored or otherwise secured
against movement;

vi. the chlorination system shall be
provided with a contact chamber of a minimum of
100 gallons, and shall be equipped with an
automatic cutoff to prevent flow from the third
septic tank/chamber if the chlorine supply is
exhausted. Also, the effluent line from the chlorine
contact tank shall be protected against entrance of
small animals or other pests by use of a corrosion-
resistant flap-type gate, screen, or other means
approved by the state health officer,

5. Vessels. Vessels which are permanently
moored shall be connected to an approved
sewerage system.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
40:4{A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1361 (June
2002},



Chapter 15. Sewage Loading Criteria
[formerly Chapter 13 Appendix B]
§1501. General Réquirements
A. See Note (a)

i
ong bedroom
300 0.52 two bedroom
400 0.68 three bedroom
Assembly Note (b) 2 0.0034 per seat
Bowling Alleys (no food service) Note (b) 75 0.13 per lane
Churches Note (b) 5 0.0088 per sanctuary seat
Churches (with permitted kitchens) Note (c) 10 0.017 per sanctuary seat
Country Clubs 50 0.085 per member |
Dance Halls Note (b) 2 0.0034 per person
Drive-In Theaters 5 0.0085 DET Car space ‘
Factories (no showers) 20 0.051 per employee |
Factories (with showers) 33 0.06 per employee ‘
Food Service Operations |
Ordinary Restaurant (not 24 hour) 35 0.12 per seat ‘
24-hour Restaurant. 50 0.17 per seat !
Banguet Rooms 5 0.017 per seat 1
Restaurant Along Freeway 100 0.33 per seat
Curb Service (drive-in) 50 0.17 pet car space
Bar, Cocktail Lounges, Taverns
{no food service or very little food service) 25 0.084 per seat
{with regular food service) 35 0.12 per seat
Video Poker Machine 100 0.20 per machine
Fast Food Restaurants 40 0.13 per seat
Hotel/Motel Food Service 45 0.17 PEr T00m
Homes/Mobile Homes in Subdivisions 400 0.68 per dwelling
Individeal Homes/Mobile Homes 250. 0.425 one bedroom
(where individual sewage technology is 300 0.51 two bedrooms
utilized. For each additional bedroom add
100 gpd) 400 0.68 three bedrooms
Hospitals (no resident personnel) Note (c) 200 0.51 per bed
Institutions (residents) Note (¢} 100 0.25 per person
Municipalities 100 0.17 DEX PErson
Mobile Home Parks
up to § trailer spaces 400 0.68 per mobile home
space
6 trailer spaces or more 300 0.51 per mobile home
space |
Motels Note (b) 100 0.12 per unit |
Nursing and Rest Homes Note (c) 100 0.25 per patient ;
per resident i
100 0,17 employes i
Office Buildings 20 0.051 per employee :
Recreational Vehicle Dumping Stations Consult OPH :
Recreational Vehicle Parks and Camps 125 0.21 per trailer or tent |
space
Retail Store 20 0.034 per employee
Schools—Elementary Note (c) 15 0.038 per pupil
Schools—High and Junior High Note (¢} 20 0.051 per pupil
Retail Fuel Stations Note (d) 250 0.43 per individual
(Located on major highways, etc., and whose vehicle fueling
primary function is to provide fuel and point (up to the
service to motor vehicleg) first four)
125 0.21 for each
additional
individual vehicle
fueling point
Shopping Centers 0.2 0.00034 per square foot of
(no food service or laundries) floor space



Swimming Pool (including employees) per swimmer
Showers per shower
Vacation Cottages PEI Person
Youth and Recreation Camps Note (c) 50 0.12 per person
Washing Machines - 400 1.34 per machine
1. Note (a) If loading criteria other than presented here are used, they should be justified.

2. Note (b) Food Service waste not included.

3. Note (¢) Food Service waste included but without garbage grinders.

4. Note {d) Vehicle fireling points are an arrangement of gasoline or diesel fuel pumps to serve automobiles or other vehicles. For the

purposes of these guidelines, a vehicle fueling point is one that serves a vehicle at one time. Food service waste not included.

Note: Design calculations for sewage treatment facilities must be made based on both hydraulic loading(s) and organic loading(s).
Final design of facility to be used upon the larger capacity (size) required by these calculations.

B. Figures
1. Methods of Making Percolation Tests

when makilaog vhen gmaking
percolation percolation
tegts mark line te3ts mark line
here at regular : hire :t rEguiar
time dntervals
measuring time intervale xsari
msasurin
stick / guide 1ind il 3
gulde line guide linme

T IR TR T :
) b 1 g2 " )
batter batter .
board board ;
? '?ﬁ" diameter
"'22“ lazyer 2" layer

of graval af gravel

NaTE: 1. Leave batter bpard in place, being
careful not to move §t during tests.

2. Keep measuring stick within guide
imps on batter board when sach
reading is taken.

FIGURE 1
METHODS OF MAKING PERCOLATION TESTS




2. Typical Layout of Absorption Trench

ABEORPT ION TREMLH
width: 12" tg 18Y
depth: 24" o 36"
jevel bottem

- —
_____ —— — I
A
A

IR, |
= o ]

&' min
= ===

~ -_—— =

dashed lings indicate extent of
" ooarse aggregate

watertight joints
from septie tank
ta field 1ines

slope 2" to 3 per 1007
TR
= — ey O

dashed Tlnes Indicate extent
of coarse aggregate

lTevel bottom

SELCTIAON A-A

HOTE: See Figure 4 for additional details

FIGURE 2
TYPICAL LAYOUT OF ABSORPTION TREMCH




3. Absorption Field System for Sloping Ground

Q.stributinn box baffle

:ﬂ:&p—_ﬂ--.

| T -

W Wi bell 6
pigot ,f
ipe_ ___]

| o | —

| PR

3 100" h'l'liral'n »

- )4
_____ - P

-mow omamoawl [ —

field lateral s
follow contours

PLAN

undisturbed

&earth S

fleid Yaterals to
fnj]ow CONTOUNS

I

PETAILL

NOTE: See Figure 4 for additiomal details

FIGURE 3
ABSORPTION FIELD SYSTEM FOR SLOPING GROXIND



4. Absorption Trench and Lateral Details

over F111 to

allov fay
nat:lementﬁﬁﬁ\m
_.4-‘*;* -
- 6"9&‘ Ty

uotredted bulldiug pedes 4 ' parkfLll,
or ayitabtle pervious -\ a A0 {enrEhy )

i
i

; -‘i :

raa

] ‘Q-".q
g * S
4 . Ew W g ‘,:, -

lateral of drain tile
ghova =~ open Felnted
gEwsT pipe or
peyforated pipe

level bottom _ _
grawel aor
broken stene

LN GITUCTELINAL
S EL YT OR &

* m

=
o I
i I
o0
=

ROTES: 1. Drein tile laid with joints opened
from & to & inch. Special collars
may be used if desired.

2. Agphaltic treated paper for joint
covering.

FICURE 4
ABSORETIOK TREMCH AND LATERAL DETAILS

}



Typical Layout: Septic Tank/Oxidation Pond System

Bt dia. with 2''/100' slepe

[--2492——‘{
min. 4" di
with 1784 +-1-----
par fi. ~3 Tr
Lj{npe £0
HoWsE  f--+ -t _l_
SEPTIC TANK oy DATION POND

FLAH YIEW

TEE LJOIHT QUTLET

outfall to
receiving stream
or drairage ditch-—

HOUSE

SEFTIC TAKK
DXIDATION POND

SECT I OH W EW

NOTES: }. Pond must he enclosed by a zuitable fence.

2. Outlet dnvert Lo be at same or Jower
elavatiagn tham inlet inwvert.

3. Pond water surface at Teast 2" below septiic
tank water surface.

FISIRE &
TYPICAL LAYQUT: SEPTIC TANK7OXIDATION POND SYSTEM



6. Oxidation Pond Timber Retaining Wall Details

pasEs patts

wriginal ground surface

EXCAVATION
4l trezatéd timber '
wvertical post

bxd treated timber post
; ' pn center

: jxii trested timbher

-1%12 trﬁat&-‘* ek sheéting

vop weew |

CORNER CDNSIRUCTIDN ' E |

mpen fanna
fchafn link
ar wire}

il

backFl1ly

3

mﬁél] pathzﬁw
earch or

A come et 3%
snnular spacs |

i

. ! i L

SECT kN : ELEYW. DF. PONB wWhLl

FIGURE &
OXI1DATION FPOND TIMBER RETAIMIRNG MALL DETAILS




7. - Oxidation Pond Concrete Block Retaining Wall Details

el ' . Cwall
¢ , &

' - £0-B -
::mrigi’ngli ground surface

G s S s

TR
- EXCAMAT DN

' JJ"‘ z?stzf'aZSIdwafﬁ BBl b hed fowm

1 et ~conerete RlSEK
.‘“?31:"’1 i A =~ cement _fartor “f durgwstl fonst.
| durawall const. A reinf, sach sec.

Bga. wWire truss
swery seognd tourse

COMNER CONSTRULT 10N ToP ViEW
| |
‘ﬁ""-w----—-—-.—-—pg

: open -‘FEI‘EI:E: o
Bald i, sultalile poses

bagkfi1E Fante. o W
~ ’-l‘j%'i Ght ,7 "

Fenre post

| TG e bloek | f'F i3 ‘s 3?
Rz 2 Voobshorion | NI | ] | : L)
\\ e FIU1 wf| A :_;" = ~

s L concrate / i I I }

¥
%2

¥
%12 treated timber grade board

ELEW. 0F POND WALL

FIGUERE ¥
ORIDATION PORD CONCREYE BLODCK RETAINING WaLL DETAILS



8.

Leveed Oxidation Pond

BXIDATION POND
25 x 25

# 4L AH

cutfall to diteh or
rece twing stream

1847 RTEE JOINT GUTLET tevee slops

staep as pragrica’

O e e 2

o from saptic fank

inlat invaft ac
Tasst 2! aboyve
cutlot invert

S5ELTI1ION

FIGURE B
LEYEED OXTOATION POMD



9, Typical Layout: Septic Tank/Sand Filter Bad System

sund

tank .
FLltex

HOTSE

P LAY

F RGO F £ LE

NGTE: See Figure 10 for additional deteils

FIGHRE 9
TYPICAL LAYOUT: SEPTIC TAMK/SAND FILTER BED SYSTEM



10. Sand Filter Bed Details

‘flow from sepric tagk
bell aoud wpigot
tight jointe

P L AKX vy I EBE WU

T fgerfarated
~ 1 Z 7 aistributien
G Tinen AV die.
islope net teo

it Finder
: dysin
pipe
e o s -
b . g M?Eﬁm s;ep& e tacaiviﬁg
. z::zriiuzzzn 11“2: drainage coursz for
#%%. should be half romplete grawity
olpeEd c hrewi ﬂrain&ge ime least
clkirard AF & O 10607}

“piug

dtﬂi"#ae

Y pea gravel _
2" medium gravel-
2" coarse gravel 5&%5}3”31“ SECTIOCEK AL ¥V 1EW

FIGURE 10
SARD FILTER BED DETAILS

axcesd 2- ere0 )



11. Chlorinator

CHLORINATOR

STACK FEED CHLORINATORS

Chlorine Feed Tuhes

Effluert Outlet

Effluent Inkst

Figure 11

4

L )

i ——— Chiatine Feed Tubes
-

o
P A

[ :
Effluent Inlet -—] o —Effluert Outlet LY
— ’!T ] ;
[ N
PviC Tee
Figure 12 Figure 13

Chlcrinatars can be purchased premanufactured (as in Figure 11), or can be constructed
onsite using the follovving mirimum critetia - (Figure 12) Use a four-inch minimum PY'C Tee
with & restrictive ingert {see Figure 13} to cortral the effluent flow. Thiz allows the tablets
to be contacted by the efflusnt in proportion to the amaurt of flow. The insert is cemented
onta the PVC Tee with the restriction pointing down.



12. Effluent Reduction Tankage

EFFLUENT REDUCTION TANKAGE

NOTE: ALL RISERS SHALL BE 3 INCHES ABOVE GRADE.

HORIS 9 o Lot

MBS LI s TUERLEE O

EMBANIIUD

(paanbal aisijan)
aceyD diling

Vo] TR Fi g s TF A

e Uswpsdwon oM Ul 8
Ay Buduind § LoEULoLD [S10N

[palnba) adaian)
ML BULOID JDRUD

uog Bucues
praacitlidy

WAL afiemas peandidy

1oH g LNONVETS

FIGURE 14



13. Effluent Reduction Field

EFFLUENT REDUCTION FIELD

4" PYC

FPLAN VIEWWY

r_ 4" perforated pipe

putmipMiwith

| From

F'urﬁpl:haml::uer —

effluent discharge
chamber
(if recuired)

&' minitmu

]
=]
sy
(=
=
0
=

(where
reguired)

4" perforated pine,

— |

miniinum 100 feet

surface grade

Last 10" zolid pipe

sutable "perivous" barrier

T G M 2" |laver of gravel aver pipe

B" [ayer of gravel

Figure 15

to lay perforated pipe on



14. Rock Plant

ROCK PLANT

Flan View
1' hetween wall and cap
mIet & outlet]
e ."‘:'-."-?‘T-"‘-" i Nt ':-_-____j.-‘ ‘;._.T!. 1o ditch
_— X PR ,pQEfura'Fa:j plp‘ . ,::,_-57-:‘-‘ il I_’H
- r III ; ] —
chamber  Ta' - » B = EE 5 O =
s T g ¢=25 5
af £ £ 252%5¢® @
sewage ™ max.trench length is 100 &. NoFesgt =
treatmert | =5 -
system FIGLURE 1B =
Longituding cross-section
&l plants
surface grade 11" e |E"-"EE gravel depth 2"
. PP |y B LUk —
A PVCINLET "_'..-, weater IE'-.-'EI a8" g
i I"’I. b _.", “-- = [+ =i} L'Fl'-" g 5

ﬂ ok 2 o 3" |ametE=r grawel -

" 14" max. depth
4" focting JeRa e es ruen Lot PYC. 1 i

linet may be required 1" footing
1" hetvween vall & cap Creerhead View
(both endls) Y - r —
Elbowy bedl wickh | ety ] e
J'to 10
K

FIGURE 17



15.

Spray Irrigation Schematic

SPRAY IRRIGATION SCHEMATIC

Schematic shows 4 spray heads - minimuin of 3 spray heads required

Perimetet of Spray Area Shall Be At Least 10 Feet From Property Lines/Structures

Spray Heads

40-faot Mininmm
Diistarne Bebweest Spray Heais

Spray Heals m

o B e

¥ — Lok

1oinch Srhedule %L’

PYC Pipe
(12in, sisiveus depth)

P

C

L

Cleanont m—— &

— Pamp Chanber

s CWlev¥inatery

? ——— Sample Port

~—— B pproved Sewage Treatreend Farility

Residence

Minirurn Standard Layout for
- Spray Irrigation Frocess
Utihzing Four Spray Heads

Drawing not to Soale

Figure 18



16. Overland Flow

OVERLAND FLOW

C )

Property Ling
1.
Slope
Ay e

\ 4" Diameter | 4

\ Perforated / ‘
- P # .
o S | @
. _ a
h S L

Fipe Outlst ta be
s 200 Faet From
T Rear Property Line
From ‘
PLmp
Lhamber
1 3 Acres Minimum Lot Size
2

Figure 19




17. Mounds
MOUNDS

- Digtribution Leteral

Marsh Hay\
Fil e, N o

L B .J"l;{‘n,;,,

"’2"$Mrr—_ i u‘v

o | Pige: o plowed Layer
Tranoh of 142° . 2" Eram ' -
Coarse Agoregate Puittips

Cross Section of Mound System Using 2 Trenchies for Absorption Area

- L ~
l .
—
Fipe

Frotri~
Pung \_

W l
T il ol
I Dstriution = Trispich of 410% - 27
T Lateral Coarse Aogreoste

PFlan View of Mound Systern Uging 2 Trenches for Absorption Area

Figure 20

MOTE MUET BE APPROYED BY. OPH - CNGINEERING SERVICES
N CORMSULTATION WITH SANITARIAN REGOMAL BIRECTOR



18. Drip Disposal System

DRIP DISPOSAL SYSTEM

= 1] B = 1]
T i MNumker of Emitters,
Length, and Spacing
Dependz Upan Saoil
N 5] ==} 23] g Conditions and
Manufacturer's
Epecifications
i ! =¥ EH = = 1]
Back Wash | @ A Relief Reguired
(Recommencled)
{ ) Fitter {Recommendecd)
&
=
@ A
=
Eu'.r From Pump Chamber

Line Depth - 6 inch Minimum to 15 inch Maximum
Line Separation - 2 foot Minimum

Figure 21



19. Pumping Chamber for Effluent Reduction

PUMPING CHAMBER
FOR

EFFLUENT REDUCTION

;-‘?a,c:i;teaﬂ Port
3* Ahove Finished Grade

Caneduit l’ '

gLy, ToEffluent Reduction

Iriet =
Lt aommnnn & | .
_ o . J Ly System
Ta AudiofVistal Marm ! \ |
< | / D Chack Yalve
High Level . | _
Slarm Switch v Pump

M
T
Flost Switedy

NCGTE: Chiari’rxaﬁiun and Pumping May Be 6 A Two-Campartmert Tank

Figure 22

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S. HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Health
40:4(A)(6) and R.S. 40:5(9)(20). and Hospitals, Office of Public Health, LR 28:1362 (June 2002).



David K. Hedrick, Jr., Sheriff

ConcorpiA PArisH SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Vidalia, LA 71373

eet, Room 7 -
4001 Carter Str 318-336-5021 Fax

318-336-5231

2/18/2022

Concordia Parish Police Jury
Attn: Sandi Burley

4001 Carter Street, Rm 1
Vidalia, LA 71373

RE: Flooring Cost for Jail Renovation Project
Mrs. Burley,

As per your conversation this morning with Tamiko Hines in regards to the flooring in the Concordia Parish Jail,
we are asking that the Police Jury reimburse Concordia Parish Sheriff's Office for approximately 2000 sq. feet of
flooring to complete the jail renovation project.

In an effort to maximize the limited space within the Parish’s boaking, processing and holding area, the CPSO
took out all old counters as well as the make shift walls which has stood in place for the past 20 years. During
the demolition, we found that large areas under counters and walls were not tiled and was the building’s
original concrete foundation. Those areas are now completely exposed.

Due to the age, wear, and discoloration of the existing tile, there is no way that we could match and simply
replace those tiles. And due to this being an extremely high traffic area, the option to leave the floor in its
current state poses safety risk for not only our staff but the inmates held under the police jury’s watch.
Therefore, we are asking that the police jury approve $3000.00 to remove, patch, and replace all flooring within
the Concordia Parish Jail. All receipts for flooring, glue, rental of tile remover, and sander will be forwarded to

your office for reimbursement.

As you all know, if this complete project were to be contracted out through your office, as the courtroom
renovation was, the flooring alone would have exceeded 3 times the requested reimbursement amount.

it is our honor to serve and protect our parish.

We look forward te a speedy response.

Sincerely M\
/ Ny .

Sheriff David Hedrick, Jr.




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
for

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

Concordia Parish Police Jury (CPPJ)

REP #: HMGP - 4462

Proposal Due Date/Time: , 2022 at 4:30 p.m.

Release Date: , 2022




Table of Contents

Part 1. Administrative and General Information..................c..ocie oo 3
L L, P POSE ittt et e e 3
1.2, Schedule of EVENES .......ccooiiiiiiic e e 3
1.3, Qualifications Of PrOPOSET ..ottt 3
1.4, Proposal ReSponse FOMMAt............c..ooueiiiiiiiiiisie e s eae s 3

1.4.1. CoverLetter .........coooo e ST UO RO UUPOPIRURTPPPIN 3
1.4.2,  Table of COMtents .. .....coooiiiiiii e 3
1.4.3.  EXECULIVE SUIMIMIATY ........oiiiiiiiiiiiies ettt e re e st e e ert e s vrtae s es 4
1.4.4.  Quality and TIMElINess ............ocooiriiiiii e e 4
1.4.5. Relevant Corporate EXperience..........c.c.ooooieiiiiiriien it 4
1.4.6. Personnel Qualifications and Organizational Chart....................c.c.ocooiiiiiinl. 4
147, SUDCOMIIACTOS ....vvvoiie it et e et 5
1.48  Attachment T: Certification Statement ................o.ocooiiioieieiiiiiecee e, 5
1.4.9.  Attachment 2; LICEISE ........ccooovieeiitieiiii i iieeee e e e ee e sre e avee e be e e s ane 5
1.5, Proposal Submittal TnStruCtiONS. .....o..ooiiiiiiii e 5
1.6.  Proposal Clarifications Prior to Submittal ..............coccoooie i 5
1.6.1.  Pre-proposal Conference..............ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicie e 5
1.6.2.  Proposer INQUITIES.........cocviriiieirieiiiiie it e et et ae et s et 5
1.7.  Error and Omissions in Proposal................c.coooiiiiiii e 6
1.8. Changes, Addenda, Withdrawals ....................cciiiiiii e 6
1.9. Waiver of Administrative Informalities.................ccoooioiii e 6
1.10.  Proposal Rejection/RFP Cancellation ...............o...oooioeoiiiiieneeecee e 6
1.11.  Insurance REeQUITEIMENTS .......viviiiiiiiee et et a e e eaeea s 7
1111, Workers COmMPenSation...........ccooveeiiiiiiiieiiorieee e ciee e et etee e e e 7
1.11.2. Commercial General Liability...............cccooiiiiiii s 7
I.T1.3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)...............coocoovmivimiiiiioiceiieeee 8
1.11.4. Automobile LIability .........cocooriiiiiiiecee et 8
112, Mandated ClAUSES ........ooiviiiiiieieiee e e et ettt 8

Part 2: Scope of WOTK ..o e 8
2.1, OVEIVIEW......ooovoi e Error! Bookmark not defined.
2.2, Taskand Services...........cccoocvriiiiiiiiiii Error! Bookmark not defined.

Part 3: EvalUation .........cccooioiiii e e e 9

3.1. Scoring Criteria



Part 1: Administrative and General Information
1.1, Purpese

Concordia Parish Policy Jury (CPPJ) is seeking a qualified firm to provide engineering and design
services that will help improve the ongoing sediment build up at the Vidalia Canal outflow into
Cocodrie Bayou. Specifically, the procured firm will be asked to study, design, and oversee
construction of a modified introduction of Vidalia Canal outflow into Cocodrie Bayou that will
encourage greater hydraulic flow downstream.,

1.2.  Schedule of Events

Event Date

RFP advertised

Deadline for receipt of written inquiries
-Deadline to answer written inquiries
Deadline for receipt of proposals
Notice of Intent to award announcement
Contract execution, on or about

Begin work under contract

1.3.  Qualifications of Proposer

It is desirable that Proposers should meet the following qualifications prior to the deadline for
receipt of proposals:

¢ Ten (10) years of experience in the design of ¢ivil works projects,

e Five (5) years of experience with providing engineering service support to project
financially supported with federal grant proceeds; and

e Five (5) years of experience providing engineering services in support of mitigation
projects.

1.4. Proposal Response Format
1.4.1. Cover Letter

A cover letter should be submitted on the Proposer's official business letterhead explaining the
intent of the Proposer.

1.4.2. Table of Contents

A Table of Contents should be included to ensure the following items are included in the
Proposer’s response.



1.4.3. Executive Summary

This section serves to introduce the scope of the proposal. It shall include administrative
information including, Proposer contact name and phone number, and the stipulation that the
proposal is valid for a time period of at least ninety (90) calendar days from the date of submission.
This section should also include a summary of the Proposer's qualifications and ability to meet the
CPPJ's overall goals and objectives for this SOW.

1.4.4. Quality and Timeliness

Proposals should include information that will assist the CPPJ in determining the level of quality
and timeliness that may be expected. The CPPJ shall determine, at its sole discretion, whether or
not the RFP provisions have been reasonably met. The proposal should describe the background
and capabilities of the Proposer, give details on how the services will be provided. Work samples
may be included as part of the proposal.

1.4.5. Relevant Corporate Experience

The Proposer should give a brief description of their company including brief history, corporate
or organization structure, and number of years in business.

The proposal should include the following details in describing its relevant experience:

» Statements specifying the extent of responsibility on prior federally funded projects and
a description of the projects’ scope and similarity to the project outlined in this RFP,

e List of previously completed projects similar in nature to the project outlined in this RFP
(preferably a minimum of 3 projects in the last 10 years).

» Statements specifying the firm’s experience working with the CPPJ on other civil works
projects.

1.4.6. Personnel Qualifications and Organizational Chart

Proposers should state job responsibilities, workload and lines of supervision. An organizational
chart identifying individuals and their job titles and major job duties should be included. The
organizational chart should show lines of responsibility and authority. Job descriptions, including
the percentage of time allocated to the project and the number of personnel should be included and
should indicate minimum education, training, experience, special skills and other qualifications
for each staff position as well as specific job duties identified in the proposal. Job descriptions
should indicate if the position will be filled by a subcontractor.



1.4.7. Subcontractors
If the Proposer intends to subcontract for portions of the work, the Proposer shall identify any
subcontractor relationships and include specific designations of the tasks to be performed by the
subcontractor. Information required of the Proposer under the terms of this RFP shall also be
required for each subcontractor. The prime Contractor shall be the single point of contact for all
subcontract work.

1.4.8. Attachment 1: Certification Statement
The Proposer must sign and submit an original Certification Statement (See Appendix A).

1.4.9. Attachment 2: License

The Proposer must provide state license authorizing the firm’s ability to perform engineering
services in the state of Louisiana.

1.4.10. Attachment 3: Certificate Regarding Lobbying
The Proposer must sign and submit an original Certificate Regarding Lobbying (See Appendix B).
1.5. Proposal Submittal Instructions
The Proposer must submit its proposal prior to , 2022 by email transmittal to Sandi

Burley at sandiburley3 1 8@ email.com. Propesals too large for email transmittal may be shared
with this email using a third-party FTP or external link as well.

1.6. Proposal Clarifications Prior to Submittal

1.6.1. Pre-proposal Conference
Not required for this RFP.

1.6.2. Proposer Inquiries
Written questions regarding RFP requirements or Scope of Work must be submitted to the RFP
Coordinator listed below. All communications relating to this RFP must be directed to the RFP
Coordinator. All communications between Proposers and other CPPJ staff members concerning

this RFP shall be strictly prohibited. Failure to comply with these requirements shall result in
proposal disqualification.

Sandi Burley
Secretary/Treasurer



Email: sandiburley3 18{@email.com

CPPJ will consider written inquiries regarding the requirements of the RFP or Scope of Services
to be provided before the date specified in the Schedule of Events. To be considered, written
inquiries and requests for clarification of the content of this RFP must be received at the above
email address by the date specified in the Schedule of Events. Any and all questions directed to
the RFP Coordinator will be deemed to require an official response and a copy of all questions and
answers will be posted by the date specified in the Schedule of Events to the following web link:

https://incdnt. sharepoint.com/.f:/s/RostanPortal/El tedwlp g VEoDwXdBpV7pkBx5B7jyQFpumf

CBERSQO7OWA7e=Cl02iT

Proposers are responsible for checking this link after the CPPJ’s deadline to respond to written
inquiries to ensure the Proposer has reviewed all updates to this RFP.

Action taken as a result of verbal discussion shall not be binding on the CPPJ. Only written
communication and clarification from the RFP Coordinator shall be considered binding. Only the
RFP Coordinator has the authority to officially respond to a Proposer’s questions on behalf of the
CPPJ. Any communications from any other individuals shall not be binding to the CPPJ.

1.7.  Error and Omissions in Proposal

CPPJ the right to seek clarification of any proposal for the purpose of identifying and eliminating
minor irregularities or informalities.

1.8.  Changes, Addenda, Withdrawals

CPPIJ reserves the right to change the schedule of events or revise any part of the RFP by issuing
an addendum to the RFP at any time.

1.9. Waiver of Administrative Informalities

CPPJ shall reserve the right, at its sole discretion, to waive minor administrative informalities
contained in any proposal.

1.10. Proposal Rejection/RFP Cancellation

Issuance of this REP in no way shall constitute a commitment by the CPPJ to award a contract(s)
or to enter into a contract after an award has been made. The CPPJ reserves the right to take any
of the following actions that it determines to be in its best interest:

1. Reject, in whole or part, all proposals submitted in response to this solicitation;
2. Cancel this RFP; or



3. Cancel or decline to enter into a contract with the successful proposer at any time after
the award is made and before the contract receives final approval from the CPPJ.

1.11. Insurance Requirements
Insurance shall be placed with insurers with an A M. Best’s rating of no less than A-: V1.
This rating requirement shall be waived for Worker’s Compensation coverage only.

If selected to perform the services under this contract, the awarded firm shall furnish the CPPJ
with Certificates of Insurance reflecting proof of required coverage prior to executing the contract.

1.11.1. Workers Compensation

Workers Compensation insurance shall be in compliance with the Workers Compensation law of
the State of the Proposer’s headquarters. Employers Liability is included with a2 minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per accident/per disease/per employee. A.M. Best's insurance company rating
requirement may be waived for workers compensation coverage only. Before any work is
commenced, the Proposer shall obtain and maintain during the life of the contract, Workers'
Compensation Tnsurance for all of the Proposer 's employees employed to provide services under
the contract. In case any work is sublet, the Proposer shall require the subcontractor similarly to
provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees, unless such employees
are covered by the protection afforded by the Proposer. In case any class of employees engaged in
work under the contract at the site of the project is not protected under the Workers" Compensation
Statute, the Proposer shall provide for any such employees, and shall further provide or cause any
and all subcontractors to provide Employer's Liability Insurance for the protection of such
employees not protected by the Workers' Compensation Statute.

1.11.2. Commercial General Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance, including Personal and Advertising Injury Liability and
Products and Completed Operations, shall have a minimum limit per occurrence of $1,000,000
and a minimum general annual aggregate of $2,000,000. Claims-made form is unacceptable.

The Contractor shall maintain during the life of the contract such Commercial General Liability
Insurance which shall protect Proposer, CPPJ, and any subcontractor during the performance of
work covered by the contract from claims or damages for personal injury, including accidental
death, as well as for claims for property damages, which may arise from operations under the
contract, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by a subcontractor, or by anyone directly
or indirectly employed by either of them, or in such a manner as to impose liability to the CPPJ.
Such insurance shall name the CPPJ as additional insured for claims arising from or as the result
of the operations of the Proposer or its subcontractors.



1.11.3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)

Professional Liability (Error & Omissions) insurance, which covers the professional errors, acts,
or omissions of the Contractor, shall have a minimum limit of $1,000,000. Claims-made coverage
is acceptable. The date of the inception of the policy must be no later than the first date of the
anticipated work under the contract. It shall provide coverage for the duration of the contract and
shall have an expiration date no earlier than 30 days after the anticipated completion of the
contract. The policy shall provide an extended reporting period of not less than 36 months from
the expiration date of the policy, if the policy is not renewed.

1.11.4. Automobile Liability

Automobile Liability Insurance shall have a minimum combined single limit per accident of
$1,000,000. This insurance shall include third-party bodily injury and property damage liability
for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. Such insurance shall cover the use of any non-
licensed motor vehicles engaged in operations within the terms of the contract on the site of the
work to be performed thereunder, unless such coverage is included in insurance elsewhere
specified.

1.12. Mandated Clauses

The Proposer will be subject to the mandatory obligations outlined in Appendix C if awarded the
contract.

Part 2: Scope of Work

CPP]J is secking a qualified engineering firm to help study and design a modified introduction of
Vidalia Canal into Cocodrie Bayou (Lat: 31.516721, Long: -91.586203). Ultimately, CPPIJ is
seeking to mitigate the flood risks arising from the sedimentation and congestion at the existing
juncture between Vidalia Canal and Cocodrie Bayou. CPPJ may seek additional H&H analysis
from the selected firm to support additional project scenarios up stream of project that may benefit
flood conditions along the Vidalia Canal.

Preliminary reviews suggest Vidalia Canal needs to enter Cocodrie Bayou at an angle (such as a
“wye” connection) that will promote greater hydraulic discharge of water and sediment
downstream. If deemed the preferred method, the selected firm will be asked to design the
modified introduction and discontinuance of the existing connection. Cocodrie Bayou is currently
listed as a Scenic River under the Louisiana Scenic Rivers Act; therefore, the selected firm will
also be responsible for providing technical support as the CPPJ seeks permitting authority,
variance, and/or legislative exception for this project.



The selected firm will be asked to provide technical support throughout all phases of permitting,
to include additional federal grant obligations as required during engineering and design. The
selected firm may also be asked to provide construction project management and/or administrative
oversight, subject to the needs and resources of the Parish.

Part 3: Evaluation

3.1. Scoring Criteria

Proposals that pass the preliminary screening and mandatory requirements review will be
evaluated based on information provided in the proposal. The evaluation will be conducted
according to the following.

The Evaluation Team will evaluate and score the proposals using the criteria and scoring as
follows:

Maximum
Criteria Score

Firm’s ability to demonstrate quality and timeliness

Firm experience with similar civil works projects

Firm experience working with the CPPJ

Personnel Qualifications




CORRESPONDENCE
FROM

BOARDS
AND
COMMITTEES



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation Dlstrlct Number Three met in regular meetmg an Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center.

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr,; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director

Members not preSent:

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by alf to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duscn, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the fioor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thornas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appomt Kale
Davis as Co Chalrman and aII approved

It was moved by, Jackle Johnston seC‘onded by Greg Young and carried by ali to approve the Decernber 2021
minutes,

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by &ll to approve the December 2021 financial
report.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by all to approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A, 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball Ieagues The rec -
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through ane site.

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for Novernber
and December rental of $314. Greg Young macde a motion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Daws and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase
of eqmpment

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasmg some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a metion, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, secaend by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 7:10pm

Kally H Murray Jarmes Thomas
Secretary Chairman




The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Number Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center. '

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Dusan, Jr; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; G(aham Roberts, Recreation Director ‘ '

© Members not present: :

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time Tt was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 vctes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominatad for Co-Chalrman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appaint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report. - '

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by a.H to approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS: 3

A. 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site, '

B. James Thomas discussed the foctball storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a motion, secanded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seccnded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase

* of equipment. . _

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the balt fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a motion, seconded by Glen Perilioux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 7:10pm

Katly H Murray James Thomas
Secretary Chairman




The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Mumber Three met in regular meeting_ on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center. '

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnstor; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director '

Members not present:

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Ma rsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the flocr, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the fioor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes. ' '

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by all to approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A. 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the onling registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as cther coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site.

B. James Thomas discussad the football storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a mgtion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A, James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made & motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase
of equipment. '

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Dusen, Ir. made a motion, seconced by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Dusen, Jr. and all
approved at 7:30pm

Kally H Murray James Thomas
Secretary Chairman



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Number Three met in reqular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center, '

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director -

Members not present:

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to cpen up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thormas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
reccmmendations cn the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved. '

It was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis anc carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report. ‘

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by all to approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A. - 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs t¢ go through the online registration
versus paper.-Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site.

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all tc pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $5C0 for the purchase
of equipment. ‘ ; ' ,

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a motion, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 7710pm

Kally H Murray James Thomas
Secretary Chairman




The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreatlon District Number Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center. '

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Perilioux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director

‘Members not present;

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by ali to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Frec Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no cther
recommendations on the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other '
recommendations on the floar, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

it was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes.

it was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial -

report.
it was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by allto approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

' A 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
‘communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site. _

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and Decemnber rental of $314. Greg Young made a metion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. James Thomas discussed the ir. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
eguipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase
of equipment.

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the compiex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a motion, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion te adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 710pm

Kally H Murray James Thomas
Secretary Chairrnan



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Nurmnber Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,

January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center.

Present at the meeting: James Thomas Jackie Johnston; Frank Duscn, Jr.; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsahs Greg

Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreatlon Director
Members not present:

First order of business was to élect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therafore at that time It was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the fiocr, a written vote was taken. Jarmes Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Racreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the ficor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Johnsten, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes,

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried -by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report.

It was moved by, Greg' Young, seconded by Gien Perilloux and carried by all to approve the January 2022 invaices

OLD BUSINESS:

A, 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Cnce teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site.

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still cwed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a mation, secended by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS;

A. James Thamas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $5C0 for the purchase
of equipment. |

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a motion, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 7:10pm

Kally H Murray James Thomas
Secretary Chairman



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Number Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center. '

" Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Perilloux; Wiliie Fred Marsalls; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director '

Members nct present;

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Grég Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duscn, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominatad for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations cn the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. tc appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes,

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Cavis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by allto approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A, 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach wili have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site. '

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and December rental of §314. Greg Young made a moticn, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. - James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase

, of equipment.

B. Graham Roberts talked with the beard about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a maticn, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

Wwith no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 7:10pm

Kally H Murray _ Jarmes Thomas
Secretary Chairman



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Number Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center.

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Periliouy; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director ‘ '

Members not present:

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendaticns on the floor, & written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 vates and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominatec Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seccnded by Frank Dusen, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes. '

- It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
" report.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by all to approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A. 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rac
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that s registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each ona. Once teams are picked, sach coach will have access and can
commiunicate with parents as well as cther coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site.

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all to pay.

NEW BUSINESS: :

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has Been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase
of equipment. - , . '

B. Graham Roberts taiked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a moticn, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all

approved at 7:10pm

Kally H Murray Jamas Thomas
Secretary Chairman



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Number Three met in regular meeting on Thursday, -
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center.

Presernt at the meeting: Jameé Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsélis,' Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director

Members not present;

First order of business was to elect a new chairman cf the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 vetes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Jehnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes.

It was moved by, Greg Young; seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report. ' '

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by alltc approve the Jahuary 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A. 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site.

B. Jares Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all tc pay.

NEW BUSINESS: :

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High basebail team and that they were in need of some
eqguipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by ali to donate $500 for the purchase
of equipment. _ 7 '

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some baiting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a mation, seconded by Glen Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to adjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at 7:10pm

Kally H Murray Jarmes Thomas
Secretary Chairman




The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Numnber Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center. '

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr.; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young; Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director

Members not present:

First order of business was to elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 votes and Willie Fred Marsalis
with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Willie Fred
Marsalis was neminated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duson, Jr. to éppoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved.

It was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and carried by all to approve the December 2021
minutes.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
repart. '

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by all to approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS:

A. 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & softball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Once teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through one site.

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we siill owed for November
and December rental of $314. Greg Young mads a moticn, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all tc pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and approved by all to donate $500 for the purchase
of equipment. . 7

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing some batting mats for the ball fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a motion, seconded by Glert Perilloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made motion to agjourn, second by Frank Duson, Jr. and all
approved at /710pm

Kally H Murray Jarnes Thomas
Secretary Chairman



The Board of Directors of Concordia Parish Recreation District Number Three met in regular meeting on Thursday,
January 13, 2022 @ 5:30 at the Recreation Center.

Present at the meeting: James Thomas; Jackie Johnston; Frank Duson, Jr,; Glen Perilloux; Willie Fred Marsalis; Greg
Young, Kale Davis; Graham Roberts, Recreation Director

Members nct present;

First order of business was tc elect a new chairman of the board. Motion was made by Fred Marsalis and
approved by all to open up nominations. Greg Young nominated James Thomas and Frank Duson, Jr.
nominated Willie Fred Marsalis therefore at that time it was turned over to Kale Davis. With nc other
recommendations cn the floor, a written vote was taken. James Thomas with 4 vates and Willie Fred Marsalis

" with 3 votes. James Thomas was appointed as Chairman of the Recreation District #3 board. Wiliie Fred
Marselis was nominated for Co-Chairman but declined and nominated Kale Davis. With no other
recommendations on the floor, Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Frank Duscn, Jr. to appoint Kale
Davis as Co-Chairman and all approved. - .

it was moved by, Jackie Johnston, seconded by Greg Young and camed by all to approve the December 2021
minutes.

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Kale Davis and carried by all to approve the December 2021 financial
report. '

It was moved by, Greg Young, seconded by Glen Perilloux and carried by allto approve the January 2022 invoices

OLD BUSINESS: 7

A. 2022 League registration/signups were discussed with the baseball & scftball leagues. The rec
board discussed the process and why registration needs to go through the online registration
versus paper. Each kid that is registered into the system will stay in the database and we will
have a record of each one. Cnce teams are picked, each coach will have access and can
communicate with parents as well as other coaches and have access to ball schedules, etc.
through cne site.

B. James Thomas discussed the football storage rental and said that we still owed for Novernber
and December rental of $314. Greg Young made a motion, seconded by Willie Fred Marsalis
and approved by all tc pay.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. James Thomas discussed the Jr. High baseball team and that they were in need of some
equipment since a lot of it has been lost or damaged. After much discussion, Greg Young
made a motion, seconded by Kale Davis and appraoved by all to donate $500 for the purchase

- of equipment. - ' ' - o

B. Graham Roberts talked with the board about purchasing sorme batting mats for the bail fields
at the complex. Frank Duson, Jr. made a motion, seconded by Glen Perifloux and approved by
all to purchase 4 batting mats.

With no more business to discuss, Greg Young made maotion to adjourn, second by Frank Duscn, Jr. and all
approved at 710pm '

Kally H Murray James Thomas
Secretary Chairman




.

5] aope B g

MEDICAL
£569 Hwy 84 (P.O. Box 111)
rerriday, Louisiana 71334
(318) 757-6551

PUBLIC NOTICE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING AGENDA

Tuesday, February 22, 2022
5:00 PM

Lacation: Board Room at Trinity Medical

Call to Order
Prayer

Roll Call

THIS IS A PUBLIC HEARING - anyone wishing to address the Board or comment on any agenda item for today’s
meeting please come forward.

V.

V.

VI

VIl

Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting held lanuary 25, 2022

Financial Report — Spencer Holder, CFO
1. Approval of Resolution to remove signer from Chaplin Program Bank Account
2. Declare Equipment as Surplus Property and Approve to Advertise for Bids

Administration Report — Nekeisha Smith, CEQ

1. Hospital Update

2. Dr. Ingram Physician Collaborator Agreement Renewal

3. Dr. Dulam Personal Services Agreement-EKG Interpretation Renewal

Management Report — Neely Greene, COO

1. Approval of the following Palicies and Procedures

Med/Surg Policy and Procedure

Emergency Department Policy and Procedure

ICU Policy and Procedure

Lab - Blood Bank Policy and Procedure

Lab — General/QC/SPOs Policy and Procedure

Medical Records Policy and Procedure

Exposure Control Plan Policy and Procedure

COVID — 19 & Elective Endoscopy Policy and Procedure

SE P o0 T

Quality Care, Compassionate Setvice




VIIL

Xl

"6569 Hwy 84 (P.O. Box 111)
Farriday, Louisiana 71334
(318) 757-6551

2. Approval of the following Medical Staff appointments
a. Dr. Charla Poole - ER
b. Dr. Ebony Juakali - ER
Appointments and Resignations
Strategic Planning (Reserve the right to enter Executive Session)

New Business
Adjourn

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to enter into
Executive Session Pursuant to LA.RS.42:61.1 (A)(2)

Quality Care, Compassionate Service




Regular board meeting of Concordia Waterworks District No. 1, January 18, 2022, P
FEB 1 8 2022

Meeting called to order at 7:00 p.m., Jean Fairbanks, Presiding.

INVOCATION: Warren Enterkin

ROLL CALL:  All commissioners present.

VISITORS: Charles Renfrow, Manger; Janice Ford

Mike Sanders made a motion to Elect by Acclamation, the officers to the following positions:

Jean Fairbanks, President, Waren Enterkin, Vice-President. Don Linder seconded and motion
carried.

Warren Enterkin made a motion to adopt as written the minutes of the December 21, 2021 board
meeting. Catherine Cartwright seconded and motion carried.

Discussion on the Elevated Tank project. Overfiow pipe has been installed on the Jonesville
Highway tank and the Vidalia Highway tank needs cleanup completed.

Don Linder made a motion to approve the December 2021 Delta Fuel bill for the amount of
$2,097.09. Catherine Cartwright seconded and motion carried.

Catherine Cartwright made a motion to approve the bills and purchase orders for January 2022.
Warren Enterkin seconded and motion carried.

Mike'Sanders made a motion to adopt the December 2021 monthly budget. Warren Enterkin
seconded and motion carried.

Mrs. Fairbanks declared the meeting over at 7:16 p.m.

SIDENT SECRETARY






